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this post-effective amendment becomes effective.

     If this Form is filed to register  securities for an offering to be made on
a continuous or delayed basis, check the following box. |X|
     If this Form is filed to  register  additional  securities  for an offering
pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the  Securities  Act,  check the following box and
list the Securities Act registration  statement number of the earlier  effective
registration statement for the same offering. |_|
     If this Form is a  post-effective  amendment  filed pursuant to Rule 462(c)
under the  Securities  Act,  check the following box and list the Securities Act
registration  statement number of the earlier effective  registration  statement
for the same offering. |_|
     If this Form is a  post-effective  amendment  filed pursuant to Rule 462(d)
under the  Securities  Act,  check the following box and list the Securities Act
registration  statement number of the earlier effective  registration  statement
for the same offering. |_|
     If delivery of the  prospectus is expected to be made pursuant to Rule 434,
check the following box. |_|

                               -------------------

The Registrant hereby amends this  registration  statement on such date or dates
as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant  shall file
a further amendment which specifically  states that this registration  statement
shall  thereafter  become  effective  in  accordance  with  Section  8(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended,  or until the  registration  statement shall
become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission,  acting
pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

                   Subject to Completion. Dated March 14, 2005

                                   PROSPECTUS

                                1,460,875 Shares

                              Class A common stock

This prospectus  relates to the resale by the selling security holders of Access
Integrated Technologies, Inc., which security holders purchased 1,217,500 shares
of our Class A common stock in our June 2004 private offering and 304,375 shares
of our Class A common stock  issuable  upon the  exercise of warrants  issued to
those  security  holders,  of which amount  60,875  shares of our Class A common
stock are issuable  upon exercise of warrants  issued to the placement  agent in
the private offering.

The selling  security holders may offer to sell the shares of our Class A common
stock being offered in this  prospectus at fixed  prices,  at prevailing  market
prices at the time of sale, at varying prices, or at negotiated prices.

The shares of our Class A common  stock are listed for  trading on the  American
Stock Exchange under the symbol "AIX".  On March 1, 2005, the last reported sale
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price of our Class A common stock was $4.81 per share.

We will not receive any proceeds from the resale of shares of our Class A common
stock by the selling security holders,  other than payment of the exercise price
of the warrants. We will pay the expenses of this offering.

SEE "RISK  FACTORS"  BEGINNING  ON PAGE 8 FOR A  DISCUSSION  OF FACTORS THAT YOU
SHOULD CONSIDER BEFORE BUYING SHARES OF OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK.

NEITHER  THE  SECURITIES  AND  EXCHANGE  COMMISSION  NOR  ANY  STATE  SECURITIES
COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR  DISAPPROVED  OF THESE  SECURITIES OR PASSED UPON THE
ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A
CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

                                ___________, 2005

                               PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

YOU  SHOULD  READ  THE  FOLLOWING   SUMMARY  TOGETHER  WITH  THE  MORE  DETAILED
INFORMATION REGARDING OUR COMPANY AND THE CLASS A COMMON STOCK BEING OFFERED AND
THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS AND NOTES TO THOSE STATEMENTS  APPEARING
ELSEWHERE IN THIS PROSPECTUS OR  INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE,  INCLUDING THE "RISK
FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 8.

In this  prospectus,  "AccessIT",  "we," "us," "our" and the "Company"  refer to
Access  Integrated  Technologies,  Inc. and its subsidiaries  unless the context
otherwise requires.

                                  OUR BUSINESS

AccessIT was organized on March 31, 2000 and we are in the business of providing
software services and technology  solutions to the motion picture industry,  and
operating  Internet data centers.  Recently,  we have actively expanded into new
and  interrelated  business  areas  relating to the delivery and  management  of
digital cinema content to  entertainment  venues  worldwide.  These  businesses,
supported  by our  Internet  data  center  business,  have  become  our  primary
strategic focus.

Our  business  focus is to create a secure,  managed  and  complete  system that
consists of software to book, track and perform accounting functions for digital
content in movie theatres,  deliver  digital  content to multiple  locations and
provide the content  management  software for managing all brands of  in-theatre
playback systems and projection systems for the digital cinema marketplace. This
system is designed to enable the motion picture industry to move from the analog
world to the digital world. The system is intended to use all of our businesses:

MEDIA SERVICES

     o    DIGITAL MEDIA DELIVERY - digital media managed  delivery  services and
          theatre  management  player  software for use in theatres  from Access
          Digital Media,  Inc.  ("AccessDM")  our wholly owned  subsidiary,  and
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          satellite  delivery  services  from  FiberSat  Global  Services,  Inc.
          ("FiberSat"),  our wholly  owned  subsidiary.  ADM Cinema  Corporation
          ("ADM  Cinema"),  our  wholly  owned  subsidiary  which  acquired  the
          Pavilion  Theatre/Entertainment  Complex  located  in the  Park  Slope
          section of Brooklyn,  New York (the "Pavilion Theatre"),  will utilize
          our digital media managed delivery  services and media player software
          products; and

     o    MOVIE DISTRIBUTION AND EXHIBITOR SOFTWARE - Hollywood  Software,  Inc.
          ("Hollywood SW"), our wholly owned  subsidiary,  develops and licenses
          distribution and exhibitor software products and services.

DATA CENTER SERVICES

     o    DATA CENTERS - AccessIT's  10 Internet  data centers  ("IDCs" or "data
          centers"), including redundant sites in Los Angeles and New York City;
          and

     o    MANAGED  SERVICE  OFFERINGS-  managed  storage and network and systems
          management services by Core Technology  Services,  Inc. ("Core"),  our
          wholly owned subsidiary, and AccessIT.

Our system provides a digital content owner with the secure delivery of multiple
files to multiple locations throughout the world with proactive notification and
security management. Our system also provides the digital content exhibitor with
access to digital  content,  freedom to choose  what to play and when to play it
with proactive  notifications and management software.  We have created a system
whereby  digital content is delivered where it is supposed to go, is played when
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it is supposed  to be played  along with the ability to act upon and report back
management and financial information.  We also have created software designed to
enable a movie  exhibitor to run all projects in a multiple  auditorium  theatre
from one central server, regardless of the hardware type or manufacturer.

We have two reportable segments: Media Services, which represents the operations
of AccessDM (including Boeing Digital (as defined below)), ADM Cinema,  FiberSat
and  Hollywood  SW, and Data Center  Services,  which are  comprised  of our IDC
operations and Managed Service Offerings.

In  February  2003,  we  organized  AccessDM,  which  in May  2004,  became  our
wholly-owned  subsidiary.  AccessDM has developed proprietary software,  Digital
Express  e-Courier,  capable of worldwide  delivery of digital data -- including
movies,  advertisements and alternative  content such as concerts,  seminars and
sporting events -- to movie theaters and other venues having digital  projection
equipment.  We are also in the process of developing  media player  software for
use by digitally-equipped movie theaters called Theatre Command Centre.

In November  2003,  we  acquired  all of the capital  stock of  Hollywood  SW, a
leading  provider of proprietary  transactional  support software and consulting
services for distributors  and exhibitors of filmed  entertainment in the United
States and Canada  (the  "Hollywood  SW  Acquisition").  Its  licensed  software
records and manages information  relating to the planning,  scheduling,  revenue
sharing, cash flow and reporting associated with the distribution and exhibition
of theatrical films. In addition,  Hollywood SW's software  complements,  and is
integrated  with,  AccessDM's  digital  content  delivery  software  by enabling
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Hollywood  SW's  customers to seamlessly  plan and schedule  delivery of digital
content  to  entertainment  venue  operators  as well as to manage  the  related
financial transactions.

In an effort to increase the  competitive  advantage of the IDCs,  on January 9,
2004, we acquired Core, a managed service provider of information  technologies.
As an information  technology  outsourcing  organization,  Core manages clients'
networks and systems in over 35  countries  in Europe,  Asia and North and South
America  and more than 20 states in the  United  States.  Core  operates  a 24x7
Global  Network  Command  Center  ("GNCC"),  capable of running the networks and
systems of large corporate  clients.  The 4 largest  customers of Core accounted
for  approximately  77% of its revenues  for the year ended March 31, 2004.  The
managed services capabilities of Core have been integrated with our IDCs and now
operate under the name of AccessIT Managed Services.

In March 2004, we acquired  certain  assets of Boeing  Digital  Cinema  ("Boeing
Digital"),  a division  of The Boeing  Company  ("Boeing").  These  assets  were
purchased to further our strategy of becoming a leader in the delivery of movies
and other digital  content to movie  theaters.  The acquired  assets  consist of
digital projectors, satellite dishes and other equipment installed at 28 screens
within 21 theaters in the United States and at one location in London,  England,
and  satellite  transmission  equipment  which  we  installed  in  Los  Angeles,
California.

Also in March 2004, we refinanced approximately $4.2 million aggregate principal
amount (plus accrued and unpaid interest) of our promissory notes pursuant to an
exchange  offer.  In exchange  for these  promissory  notes,  we issued  707,477
unregistered  shares of our  Class A common  stock  and $1.7  million  aggregate
principal  amount  of new  convertible  notes  which as of March  1,  2005  were
convertible into a maximum of 310,857 shares of our Class A common stock.

In May 2004, we entered into an agreement  with the holder of 750,000  shares of
AccessDM's common stock, to exchange all of their shares for 31,300 unregistered
shares of AccessIT's Class A common stock. As a result of the transaction, which
was consummated as of May 31, 2004, AccessIT now holds 100% of AccessDM's common
stock.

In June 2004,  we  consummated a $4.87  million  private  placement of 1,217,500
unregistered  shares of our Class A common  stock with  institutional  and other
accredited investors.  Pursuant to the private placement,  we also issued to the
investors and the placement  agent warrants to purchase up to 243,500 and 60,875
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shares of our Class A common stock, respectively,  at an exercise price of $4.80
per share, exercisable upon receipt.

In November  2004, we  consummated a $1.1 million  private  placement of 282,776
unregistered  shares of our Class A common stock at $3.89 per share with certain
accredited investors. The net proceeds of approximately $1.023 million from such
private placement were used for the FiberSat  Acquisition (as defined below) and
for working capital.

Also in November 2004, we acquired  substantially  all of the assets and certain
liabilities of FiberSat Global  Services,  LLC ("FiberSat  Seller")  through our
subsidiary  FiberSat (the "FiberSat  Acquisition").  FiberSat,  headquartered in
Chatsworth,  California, provides services utilizing satellite ground facilities
and fiber-optic  connectivity to receive,  process,  store, encrypt and transmit
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television and data signals globally.  FiberSat's  Chatsworth facility currently
houses the  infrastructure  operations of our digital cinema satellite  delivery
services. By completing the FiberSat Acquisition,  we gained extensive satellite
distribution   and  networking   capabilities   provided  by  FiberSat's   fully
operational data storage and uplink facility located in Los Angeles, California.
FiberSat  has  the  ability  to  provide  broadband  video,  data  and  Internet
transmission and encryption  services for the broadcast and cable television and
communications industries.

In February  2005, we  consummated a private  placement of $7.6 million,  4-year
convertible   debentures  (the   "Convertible   Debentures").   The  Convertible
Debentures  bear  interest at the rate of 7% per year and are  convertible  into
shares of our Class A common  stock at the price of $4.07 per share,  subject to
possible  adjustments  from time to time.  In  connection  with the  Convertible
Debenture offering, we issued the participating institutional investors warrants
(the "Convertible  Debentures Warrants") exercisable for up to 560,197 shares of
Class A common stock at an initial exercise price of $4.44 per share, subject to
adjustments  from  time to time.  The  Convertible  Debentures  Warrants  may be
exercised beginning on September 9, 2005 until five years thereafter.

Also in February 2005, we, through ADM Cinema,  consummated  the  acquisition of
substantially all of the assets of the Pavilion Theatre. The Pavilion Theatre is
an  eight-screen  movie  theatre and cafe and will be a  component  of the Media
Services  segment.  Continuing to operate as a fully functional  multiplex,  the
Pavilion  Theatre will also become our showplace to  demonstrate  our integrated
digital cinema solutions to the movie entertainment industry.

We offer  interrelated  services  that use each of our  business  units  for the
planning,  purchasing,  delivery and  management  of digital  content -- such as
movies,  advertising,  trailers and  alternative  content,  including  concerts,
seminars and sporting events -- to movie theater and other venue  operators.  We
believe that our ability to offer a wide range of fully  managed  services  will
differentiate us from other service providers,  including  distributors of other
types of digital media.

For the  three  months  ended  December  31,  2004,  we  received  47% and  53%,
respectively,  of our revenues FROM THE MEDIA SERVICES and Data Center  Services
segments.  For the nine months ended December 31, 2004, we received 35% and 65%,
respectively,  OF OUR REVENUE FROM THE Media  Services and Data Center  Services
segments.  During the fiscal year ended March 31,  2004,  we received 81% of our
revenue  from the Data Center  Services  segment and 19% of our revenue from the
Media Services segment.  OF OUR REVENUE FROM THE FROM THE MEDIA SERVICES For the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2004,  KMC  Telecom,  AT&T and Metro  Goldwyn  Mayer
("MGM") comprised approximately 27%, 12% and 10% of our revenues,  respectively.
No other single  customer  accounted for greater than 10% of revenues during the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. From our inception  through  November 3, 2003,
all of our revenues  have been  derived from monthly  license fees and fees from
other ancillary services provided by us at our IDCs.
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Our principal executive offices are at 55 Madison Avenue, Suite 300, Morristown,
NJ 07960, and our telephone number at such offices is (973) 290-0080. Our e-mail
address is investor@accessitx.com and our web site address is www.accessitx.com.
Information  accessed on or through our web site does not  constitute  a part of
this prospectus.
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                                  THE OFFERING

Class A common stock offered

by selling security holders..........................1,460,875 shares (1)

Common stock equivalents

presently outstanding................................10,401,233 shares (2)

Common stock equivalents to be
outstanding immediately

after this offering..................................10,401,233 shares (2)

Use of proceeds......................................We  will  not  receive  any
                                                     proceeds from the resale of
                                                     shares   of  our   Class  A
                                                     common stock by the selling
                                                     security   holders,   other
                                                     than    payment    of   the
                                                     exercise   price   of   the
                                                     warrants.
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American Stock Exchange symbol.......................AIX

 (1) This prospectus  covers the resale by the selling security holders named in
     this  prospectus of up to 1,156,500  shares of our Class A common stock and
     up to 304,375 shares of our Class A common stock issuable upon the exercise
     of warrants  issued to those  selling  security  holders,  of which  60,875
     shares of our Class A common stock are issuable  upon  exercise of warrants
     issued to the placement agent of our private  offering.  The offered shares
     were  acquired  by the  selling  security  holders  in a private  placement
     transaction  which was exempt  from the  registration  requirements  of the
     Securities Act of 1933. The selling  security holders may offer to sell the
     shares of Class A common stock being  offered in this  prospectus  at fixed
     prices,  at prevailing market prices at the time of sale, at varying prices
     or at  negotiated  prices.  Please  see  "Plan  of  Distribution"  in  this
     prospectus  for a detailed  explanation of how the shares of Class A common
     stock may be sold.

 (2) Reflects  9,415,422  outstanding  shares of our Class A common  stock as of
     March 1, 2005, and 985,811  outstanding  shares of our Class B common stock
     as of March 1, 2005,  which are convertible  into 985,811 shares of Class A
     common  stock;  excludes  up to  3,897,661  shares of Class A common  stock
     issuable upon the exercise of outstanding  warrants and options, and shares
     issuable  upon the  conversion  of  convertible  notes as of March 1, 2005.
     Please see  "Description of Securities" in this prospectus for a discussion
     of our capital stock.

This prospectus  contains our trademarks,  tradenames and  servicemarks and also
contains certain trademarks, tradenames and servicemarks of other parties.
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                          SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table summarizes  operating data of our Company and should be read
in  conjunction  with the  "Management's  Discussion  and  Analysis of Financial
Condition  and Results of  Operations"  section and our  consolidated  financial
statements  and the  notes  to  those  statements  appearing  elsewhere  in this
prospectus.  The data as of March 31, 2004 and for the fiscal  years ended March
31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 has been derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements.  The data as of  December  31,  2004 and for the nine  months  ended
December  31, 2004 has been derived from our  unaudited  consolidated  financial
statements.  The pro forma condensed combined financial data for the fiscal year
ended  March 31,  2004 and for the nine  months  ended  December  31, 2004 gives
effect to the  transactions  discussed  in the  overview  of the pro forma  data
beginning on page P-1 of this  prospectus.  For a discussion of the  adjustments
made in presenting such pro forma  financial data, see the "Selected  Historical
and Pro Forma  Financial  Data"  section  and the pro forma  condensed  combined
financial data appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

Consolidated statements of operations data (1):

                                                                                                         For the Nine   For the Nine
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                                                                                                         Months Ended   Months Ended
                                                         FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,            DECEMBER 31,   DECEMBER 31,

                                                     (in thousands, except share and per share data)       (unaudited)   (unaudited)
                                                     2002          2003           2004           2004          2004         2004
                                                     ----          ----           ----           ----          ----         ----
                                                                                            (pro forma)(2)            (pro forma)(2)

Revenues........................................    $1,911        $4,228         $7,201         $11,581       $7,135        $9,702
Gross profit....................................        78         1,127          3,534           6,503        3,121         4,948
Loss from operations............................    (3,417)       (2,964)        (2,505)         (3,611)      (3,814)       (3,408)
Net loss........................................    (3,610)       (3,404)        (4,805)         (6,171)      (3,988)       (3,647)
Net loss available to common stockholders.......   $(3,933)      $(4,261)       $(6,613)        $(7,979)     $(3,988)       (3,647)
Net loss available to common stockholders
  per common share
Basic and diluted...............................    $(1.21)       $(1.41)        $(1.37)         $(1.42)      $(0.42)       $(0.39)
Weighted average number of common shares
  outstanding
Basic and diluted............................... 3,238,084     3,027,865      4,826,776       5,610,492    9,432,380      9,432,380

(1)  We acquired one IDC from, and assumed certain  liabilities of,  BridgePoint
     International (USA) Inc. ("BridgePoint"), on December 21, 2001. We acquired
     six IDCs from, and assumed  certain  liabilities  of, R.E.  Stafford,  Inc.
     d/b/a/ ColoSolutions  ("ColoSolutions"),  on November 27, 2002. We acquired
     all of the capital  stock of Hollywood SW on November 3, 2003.  We acquired
     all of the outstanding common stock of Core on January 9, 2004. We acquired
     certain assets of Boeing Digital,  a division of Boeing, on March 29, 2004.
     We  acquired  substantially  all the  assets  and  certain  liabilities  of
     FiberSat  Seller on November 17, 2004. The above financial data are derived
     from our audited and unaudited financial statements and reflect the results
     of operations of the acquired  entities from the  respective  dates of such
     acquisitions.

(2)  See notes to our unaudited pro forma condensed  financial data beginning on
     page P-1 of this prospectus.
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The following table summarizes our consolidated  balance sheet data at March 31,
2003 and 2004,  and December 31, 2004,  respectively,  on an actual  basis.  The
information in this table is set forth in thousands.

                                                                March 31,
                                                                            December 31,
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:                      2003        2004           2004
                                                      ----        ----      ------------
                                                                             (unaudited)

Cash and cash equivalents.........................    $956      $2,330          $1,515
Working capital (deficit).........................    (954)        212             244
Total current assets..............................   1,327       3,143           3,496
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Total assets......................................   9,894      21,175          23,251
Total current liabilities.........................   2,281       2,931           3,272
Total liabilities.................................   5,355      11,357          10,860
Mandatorily redeemable convertible
  preferred stock.................................   2,911          --              --
Redeemable common stock...........................      --         238             247
Total stockholders' equity........................   1,628      $9,580         $12,144
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                                  RISK FACTORS

AN  INVESTMENT  IN OUR CLASS A COMMON  STOCK  INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK AND
UNCERTAINTY.  YOU SHOULD  CAREFULLY  CONSIDER THE RISKS  DESCRIBED  BELOW BEFORE
DECIDING TO INVEST IN OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK.  THE RISKS  DESCRIBED  BELOW ARE
NOT THE ONLY ONES FACING OUR COMPANY. ADDITIONAL RISKS NOT PRESENTLY KNOWN TO US
OR THAT WE PRESENTLY CONSIDER  IMMATERIAL MAY ALSO ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR COMPANY.
IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING RISKS OCCUR, OUR BUSINESS,  FINANCIAL CONDITION, RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS  AND PROSPECTS  COULD BE MATERIALLY  ADVERSELY  AFFECTED.  IN THAT
CASE, THE TRADING PRICE OF OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK COULD DECLINE, AND YOU COULD
LOSE ALL OR PART OR YOUR  INVESTMENT.  IN ASSESSING THESE RISKS, YOU SHOULD ALSO
REFER TO THE OTHER  INFORMATION  INCLUDED OR  INCORPORATED  BY REFERENCE IN THIS
PROSPECTUS, INCLUDING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES THERETO OF
OUR COMPANY INCLUDED ELSEWHERE IN THIS PROSPECTUS.

WE HAVE INCURRED LOSSES SINCE OUR INCEPTION.

We have incurred  losses since our inception in March 2000 and have financed our
operations  principally  through equity investments and borrowings.  We incurred
net losses of $2.33  million and $4.0 million in the nine months ended  December
31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. As of December 31, 2004, we had working capital
of  $224,000  and  cash  and  cash  equivalents  of  $1.52  million;  we  had an
accumulated deficit of $18.7 million;  and, from inception through such date, we
had used $8.0  million  in cash for  operating  activities.  Our net  losses are
likely to continue for the foreseeable future.

Our profitability is dependent upon us achieving a sufficient volume of business
from our customers.  If we cannot  achieve a high enough volume,  we likely will
incur  additional  net and  operating  losses.  We may be unable to continue our
business  as  presently   conducted  unless  we  obtain  funds  from  additional
financings.

Our net losses and negative cash flows may increase as and to the extent that we
increase the size of our business  operations,  increase our sales and marketing
activities,  enlarge our customer support and professional  services and acquire
additional  businesses.  These  efforts may prove to be more  expensive  than we
currently  anticipate,   which  could  further  increase  our  losses.  We  must
significantly  increase  our revenues in order to become  profitable.  We cannot
reliably  predict  when,  or if, we will become  profitable.  Even if we achieve
profitability, we may not be able to sustain it. If we cannot generate operating
income  or  positive  cash  flows in the  future,  we will be unable to meet our
working capital requirements.

WE HAVE LIMITED  EXPERIENCE  IN OUR BUSINESS  OPERATIONS,  WHICH MAY  NEGATIVELY
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AFFECT OUR ABILITY TO GENERATE SUFFICIENT REVENUES TO ACHIEVE PROFITABILITY.

We were  incorporated  on March 31, 2000. Our original  business was data center
operations. Our first IDC became operational in December 2000.

In addition  to our data  center  operations,  we have  expanded  into three new
business   areas:   (a)  providing  back  office   transactional   software  for
distributors  and  exhibitors  of  filmed  and  digital   entertainment  through
Hollywood  SW; (b)  providing  software  and systems for the delivery of digital
entertainment,  such as  movies,  to movie  theaters  and other  venues  through
AccessDM;  (c) providing information  technologies,  secure system monitoring of
telecommunications  and data network  outsourcing  through  Core,  (d) providing
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satellite  delivery  services  through  FiberSat;  and (e)  operation of a movie
theatre,  restaurant and cafe through ADM Cinema.  Although we have retained the
senior management of Hollywood SW, Core, and FiberSat, we have little experience
in these new areas of  business  and  cannot  assure you that we will be able to
develop and market the services provided  thereby.  None of these new businesses
is directly related to our data center  operations and we cannot assure you that
any of them will complement our data center  operations,  or vice versa. We also
cannot assure you that we will be able successfully to operate these businesses.
Our efforts to expand into these three new  business  areas may prove costly and
time-consuming  and may divert a considerable  amount of resources from our data
center operations.

Our lack of operating  experience in the digital  cinema  industry and providing
transactional software for movie distributors could result in:

    o    increased operating and capital costs;

    o    an inability to effect a viable growth strategy;

    o    service interruptions for our customers; and

    o    an inability to attract and retain customers.

We may not be able to  generate  sufficient  revenues  to achieve  profitability
through the operation of our data centers,  our digital  cinema  business or our
movie  distribution  software  business.  We cannot  assure  you that we will be
successful in marketing and operating  these new  businesses  or, even if we are
successful in doing so, that we will not experience additional losses.

ACCESSDM IS AN  EARLY-STAGE  COMPANY AND MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MARKET  SUCCESSFULLY
ITS DIGITAL CONTENT DELIVERY SERVICES.

AccessDM is an  early-stage  company.  It is expected  to provide  software  and
systems for the delivery of digital  content to movie theaters and other venues.
We recently  completed  development of a working version of this software,  with
final  testing  completed  in  September  2003.  We did not,  however,  have the
personnel to develop this type of software and we hired outside  consultants  to
assist us. In addition,  we may never be successful in developing  software that
is  commercially  saleable  or that our  customers  will  buy.  Moreover,  other
companies that are attempting to develop similar  software may be able to market
and sell their versions before or more cost-effectively than we can.
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OUR RECENT  ACQUISITIONS  INVOLVE  RISKS,  INCLUDING  OUR INABILITY TO INTEGRATE
SUCCESSFULLY THE NEW BUSINESSES AND OUR ASSUMPTION OF CERTAIN LIABILITIES.

We have recently made meaningful acquisitions to expand into new business areas.
However,   we  may  experience  costs  and  hardships  in  integrating  the  new
acquisitions  into our  current  business  structure.  On  November  3,  2003 we
acquired  Hollywood  SW and on January 9, 2004 we  acquired  Core.  On March 29,
2004, we acquired  assets used in the operations of Boeing  Digital,  a business
unit of Boeing,  which we intend to integrate into the business of AccessDM.  On
November 17, 2004, we acquired  assets of FiberSat  Seller.  Most  recently,  on
February 11, 2005, we acquired the Pavilion  Theatre through ADM Cinema.  We may
not be able to integrate  successfully  the acquired  businesses and assets into
our existing business.  We cannot assure you that we will be able to effectively
market the services provided by Hollywood SW, AccessDM,  Core,  FiberSat and the
Pavilion Theatre along with our data centers.  Further, these new businesses and
assets may involve a significant  diversion of our management time and resources
and be costly.  Our acquisition of these businesses and assets also involves the
risks that the businesses and assets acquired may prove to be less valuable than
we expected and/or that we may assume unknown or unexpected  liabilities,  costs
and problems.  In addition,  we assumed  certain  liabilities in connection with
these  acquisitions  and we cannot assure you that we will be able to adequately
pay off such assumed  liabilities.  Other companies that offer similar  products
and  services may be able to market and sell their  products  and services  more
cost-effectively than we can.

                                       9

BECAUSE THE USE OF ACCESSDM'S  SERVICES  LARGELY  DEPENDS ON THE EXPANDED USE OF
DIGITAL  PRESENTATIONS  REQUIRING ELECTRONIC DELIVERY, IF SUCH EXPANDED USE DOES
NOT OCCUR, NO VIABLE MARKET FOR ACCESSDM'S SERVICES MAY DEVELOP.

Even if we are among the first to develop  software and systems for the delivery
of digital content to movie theaters and other venues,  the demand for them will
largely depend on a concurrent  expansion of digital  presentations at theaters,
which may not occur for several years. There can be no assurance,  however, that
major movie studios that currently rely on traditional  distribution networks to
provide  physical  delivery  of digital  files will  adopt a  different  method,
particularly  electronic  delivery,  of  distributing  digital  content to movie
theaters.  If the  development of digital  presentations  and changes in the way
digital  files are delivered  does not occur,  there may be no viable market for
AccessDM's delivery systems and software.

IF WE DO NOT MANAGE OUR GROWTH, OUR BUSINESS WILL BE HARMED.

We may not be successful in managing our rapid growth.  Since  February 2003, we
acquired five  businesses and in connection with those  acquisitions,  we formed
three  additional  subsidiaries.  These  subsidiaries  operate in business areas
different from our data center operations business.  The number of our employees
has grown from 11 in March 2003 to 34 in March 2004 and to 58 by December  2004.
Past growth has placed,  and future growth will continue to place, a significant
challenge to our management and resources, related to the successful integration
of  the  newly  acquired  businesses.  To  manage  the  expected  growth  of our
operations,  we will need to improve our existing and implement new  operational
and financial systems,  procedures and controls.  We may also need to expand our
finance,  administrative,  client  services and  operations  staff and train and
manage our growing employee base effectively. Our current and planned personnel,
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systems,  procedures  and  controls  may not be  adequate  to support our future
operations.  Our  business,  results of operations  and financial  position will
suffer if we do not effectively manage our growth.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO  GENERATE  THE  AMOUNT OF CASH  NEEDED TO FUND OUR  FUTURE
OPERATIONS.

Our ability either to make payments on or to refinance our  indebtedness,  or to
fund planned  capital  expenditures  and research and development  efforts,  may
depend on our  ability to generate  cash in the future.  Our ability to generate
cash is in part subject to general economic, financial, competitive,  regulatory
and other factors that are beyond our control.

Based on our  current  level of  operations,  we  believe  our  cash  flow  from
operations and available cash financed  through the issuance of common stock and
promissory  notes will be  adequate  to meet our future  liquidity  needs for at
least  one  year  from  the  date of this  prospectus.  Significant  assumptions
underlie  this  belief,  including,  among other  things,  that there will be no
material   adverse   developments   in  our   business,   liquidity  or  capital
requirements. If we are unable to service our indebtedness, we will be forced to
adopt an alternative strategy that may include actions such as:

    o    reducing capital expenditures;

    o    reducing research and development efforts;

    o    selling assets;

    o    restructuring or refinancing our remaining indebtedness; and

    o    seeking additional funding.

We cannot assure you, however,  that our business will generate  sufficient cash
flow  from  operations,  or that we will be able to make  future  borrowings  in
amounts sufficient to enable us to pay the principal and interest on our current
indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity  needs. We may need to refinance all
or a portion of our  indebtedness  on or before  maturity.  We cannot assure you
that  we  will be able to  refinance  any of our  indebtedness  on  commercially
reasonable terms or at all.

                                       10

WE MAY CONTINUE TO HAVE CUSTOMER  CONCENTRATION IN OUR BUSINESS, AND THE LOSS OF
ONE OR MORE OF OUR LARGEST CUSTOMERS COULD HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON US.

We expect that we will rely, at least in the near future,  upon a limited number
of customers  for a  substantial  percentage of our revenues and may continue to
have customer  concentration  company-wide.  For fiscal years 2003 and 2004, our
four  largest  IDC  customers  accounted  for  approximately  60% and 54% of our
revenues,  respectively  (our  largest  customer,  KMC  Telecom,  accounted  for
approximately  17% and 27%,  respectively of our revenues for such fiscal years,
and our second largest customer,  AT&T, accounted for approximately 21% and 12%,
respectively,  of our revenues for such fiscal years). For the nine months ended
December 31, 2004 our four largest IDC customers accounted for approximately 39%
of our revenues (our largest customer, KMC Telecom,  accounted for approximately
20% of our  revenues,  and our second  largest  customer,  AT&T,  accounted  for
approximately 9% of our revenues.  The revenues  generated from our IDC business
constituted  approximately  57% of our total  revenue for the nine months  ended
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December 31, 2004.

To date,  AccessDM has  generated  revenues of $173,000 and we  anticipate  that
AccessDM will not generate any significant  revenues through March 31, 2005. For
the five months  ended March 31, 2004 (the  approximate  period of  ownership of
Hollywood SW by AccessIT),  the five largest customers of Hollywood SW accounted
for approximately 87% of its revenues (its largest customer,  MGM, accounted for
approximately  54% of its revenues for such  period).  For the nine months ended
December 31,  2004,  the five  largest  customers of Hollywood SW accounted  for
approximately 81% of its revenues (its largest customer,  Twentieth Century Fox,
accounted  for  approximately  30% of  its  revenues,  and  its  second  largest
customer, MGM, accounted for approximately 25% of its revenue, for such period).
For the three months ended March 31, 2004 (the  approximate  period of ownership
of  Core by  AccessIT  during  the  period),  the 4  largest  customers  of Core
accounted  for  approximately  77% of its  revenues.  For the nine months  ended
December 31, 2004, the 4 largest  customers of Core accounted for  approximately
73% of its  revenues.  A loss of or decrease in business from one or more of our
largest  customers  for any reason could have a material  adverse  effect on our
business, financial position and results of operations.

OUR  SUBSTANTIAL  DEBT  AND  LEASE   OBLIGATIONS   COULD  IMPAIR  OUR  FINANCIAL
FLEXIBILITY AND OUR COMPETITIVE POSITION.

We now  have,  and will  continue  to have,  significant  debt  obligations.  We
currently have notes payable to third parties with principal amounts aggregating
$15.5 million as of March 1, 2005. We also have capital lease  obligations  with
principal amounts aggregating $435,000 as of March 1, 2005.

These obligations could have important consequences for us, including:

     o    limiting our ability to obtain  necessary  financing in the future and
          make  it  more  difficult  for  us  to  satisfy  our  lease  and  debt
          obligations;

     o    requiring  us to  dedicate a  substantial  portion of our cash flow to
          payments  on our  lease and debt  obligations,  thereby  reducing  the
          availability  of our  cash  flow  to  fund  working  capital,  capital
          expenditures and other corporate requirements;

     o    making us more  vulnerable to a downturn in our business and limit our
          flexibility to plan for, or react to, changes in our business; and

     o    placing us at a competitive  disadvantage compared to competitors that
          might have stronger balance sheets or better access to capital by, for
          example, limiting our ability to enter into new markets.

                                       11

If we are unable to meet our lease and debt  obligations,  we could be forced to
restructure or refinance our obligations, to seek additional equity financing or
to sell assets,  which we may not be able to do on satisfactory terms or at all.
As a result, we could default on those obligations.

AN INABILITY TO OBTAIN NECESSARY FINANCING MAY HAVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON
OUR FINANCIAL POSITION,  OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS IF UNANTICIPATED CAPITAL NEEDS
ARISE.
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Our capital  requirements may vary  significantly from what we currently project
and be affected by unforeseen delays and expenses.  We may experience  problems,
delays,  expenses and difficulties  frequently encountered by similarly-situated
companies,  as  well  as  difficulties  as a  result  of  changes  in  economic,
regulatory or competitive  conditions.  If we encounter any of these problems or
difficulties   or  have   underestimated   our   operating   losses  or  capital
requirements,  we may require  significantly  more  financing  than we currently
anticipate.  We cannot  assure you that we will be able to obtain  any  required
additional financing on terms acceptable to us, if at all. We will be restricted
on the type and amount of additional  indebtedness that we may incur as a result
of our  acquisition  of  Hollywood  SW.  In  connection  with the  Hollywood  SW
Acquisition,  we issued  secured  promissory  notes to the sellers  that will be
senior to all  indebtedness  during the term of those  notes other than any debt
provided  by a bank or  institutional  lender,  which is less than $1 million in
aggregate  principal amount,  unsecured or secured by the assets of Hollywood SW
and its  subsidiaries.  We will  also be  restricted  on the type of  additional
indebtedness  that we may incur as a result of our  Convertible  Debentures.  An
inability to obtain necessary  financing could have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, operations and prospects.

OUR  PLAN  TO  ACQUIRE  ADDITIONAL  BUSINESSES  INVOLVES  RISKS,  INCLUDING  OUR
INABILITY   SUCCESSFULLY   TO  COMPLETE  AN   ACQUISITION,   OUR  ASSUMPTION  OF
LIABILITIES, DILUTION OF YOUR INVESTMENT AND SIGNIFICANT COSTS.

We intend to make further acquisitions of similar or complementary businesses or
assets,  although there are no acquisitions identified by us as probable at this
time. Even if we identify appropriate acquisition  candidates,  we may be unable
to negotiate successfully the terms of the acquisitions, finance them, integrate
the acquired  business into our then existing business and/or attract and retain
customers.  Completing an  acquisition  and  integrating  an acquired  business,
including our recently acquired businesses,  may require a significant diversion
of  management  time and resources and involves  assuming new  liabilities.  Any
acquisition  also  involves  the risks that the assets  acquired  may prove less
valuable  than  expected  and/or  that  we  may  assume  unknown  or  unexpected
liabilities, costs and problems. If we make one or more significant acquisitions
in which the  consideration  consists of our capital stock, your equity interest
in our company could be diluted,  perhaps  significantly.  If we were to proceed
with one or more significant  acquisitions in which the  consideration  included
cash, we could be required to use a substantial  portion of our available  cash,
or obtain additional financing to consummate them.

WE EXPECT COMPETITION TO BE INTENSE:  IF WE ARE UNABLE TO COMPETE  SUCCESSFULLY,
OUR BUSINESS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS WILL BE SERIOUSLY HARMED.

The market for the IDC facilities  and managed  services  business,  the digital
cinema  business  and  the  movie  distribution   software  business,   although
relatively new, are competitive, evolving and subject to rapid technological and
other changes.  We expect the intensity of competition in each of these areas to
increase in the future.  Companies  willing to expend the  necessary  capital to
create facilities and/or software similar to ours may compete with our business.
Increased  competition may result in reduced revenues and/or margins and loss of
market  share,  any of which  could  seriously  harm our  business.  In order to
compete  effectively in each of these fields,  we must  differentiate  ourselves
from competitors.

Many of our current and potential  competitors have longer  operating  histories
and greater financial,  technical,  marketing and other resources than us, which
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may permit them to adopt aggressive pricing policies. As a result, we may suffer
from  pricing  pressures  that could  adversely  affect our  ability to generate
revenues  and our  results  of  operations.  Many of our  competitors  also have
significantly greater name and brand recognition and a larger customer base than
us. We may not be able to compete  successfully with our competitors.  If we are
unable to compete  successfully,  our business and results of operations will be
seriously harmed.

WE FACE THE RISKS OF AN EARLY-STAGE COMPANY IN A NEW AND RAPIDLY EVOLVING MARKET
AND MAY NOT BE ABLE SUCCESSFULLY TO ADDRESS SUCH RISKS AND EVER BE SUCCESSFUL OR
PROFITABLE.

We have encountered and will continue to encounter the challenges, uncertainties
and  difficulties  frequently  experienced by  early-stage  companies in new and
rapidly evolving markets, including:

    o    lack of operating experience;

    o    net losses;

    o    lack of sufficient customers;

    o    insufficient revenues and cash flow to be self-sustaining;

    o    necessary capital expenditures;

    o    an unproven business model;

    o    a changing business focus; and

    o    difficulties in managing potentially rapid growth.

This is particularly the case with respect to our newly acquired businesses.  We
cannot assure you that we will ever be successful or profitable.

MANY OF OUR CORPORATE  ACTIONS MAY BE CONTROLLED BY OUR OFFICERS,  DIRECTORS AND
PRINCIPAL  STOCKHOLDERS;  THESE ACTIONS MAY BENEFIT THESE PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS
MORE THAN OUR OTHER STOCKHOLDERS.

As  of  March  1,  2005,  our  directors,   executive   officers  and  principal
stockholders  beneficially  own,  directly  or  indirectly,  in  the  aggregate,
approximately 41% of our outstanding common stock. In particular,  A. Dale Mayo,
our President and Chief Executive Officer,  beneficially holds 985,811 shares of
Class B common stock,  9,601 shares of Class A common stock, and notes which are
convertible  into  45,412  shares of Class A common  stock,  which  collectively
represent  approximately  10% of our  outstanding  common stock,  but due to the
supervoting  Class B common  stock,  represent  approximately  51% of the voting
power. These stockholders, and Mr. Mayo himself, will have significant influence
over our  business  affairs,  with the  ability  to  control  matters  requiring
approval by our security holders, including elections of directors and approvals
of mergers or other business combinations. Our Class B common stock entitles the
holder to ten votes per share.  The shares of Class A common stock have one vote
per share.  Also,  certain  corporate  actions  directed by our officers may not
necessarily  inure to the  proportional  benefit  of other  stockholders  of our
company;  under his employment  agreement,  for example, Mr. Mayo is entitled to
receive cash bonuses based on our revenues, regardless of our earnings, if any.

                                       13
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OUR  SUCCESS  WILL  SIGNIFICANTLY  DEPEND ON OUR  ABILITY TO HIRE AND RETAIN KEY
PERSONNEL.

Our success will depend in significant  part upon the continued  services of our
key technical,  sales and senior management personnel. If we lose one or more of
our key employees,  we may not be able to find a suitable replacement(s) and our
business and results of operations could be adversely  affected.  In particular,
our  performance  depends  significantly  upon the continued  service of A. Dale
Mayo,  our  President  and  Chief  Executive   Officer,   whose  experience  and
relationships  in the movie  theater  industry  are  integral  to our  business,
particularly  in the business  areas of Hollywood SW and  AccessDM.  Although we
have obtained two $5 million  key-man life insurance  policies in respect of Mr.
Mayo,  the loss of his services  would have a material and adverse effect on our
business,  operations and  prospects.  Each policy carries a death benefit of $5
million,  and  while we are the  beneficiary  of each  policy,  under one of the
policies the proceeds will be used to  repurchase,  after  reimbursement  of all
premiums paid by us some, or all, of the shares of our capital stock held by Mr.
Mayo's  estate at the  then-determined  fair market  value.  We also rely on the
experience and expertise of Russell J. Wintner,  AccessDM's  President and Chief
Operating  Officer,  the two co-founders of Hollywood SW, David Gajda and Robert
Jackovich,  who manage  Hollywood SW's  day-to-day  operations,  and Ravi Patel,
FiberSat's  President  and Chief  Operating  Officer.  In  addition,  our future
success  will  depend  upon our  ability to hire,  train,  integrate  and retain
qualified new employees.

IF WE ARE NOT SUCCESSFUL IN PROTECTING OUR INTELLECTUAL  PROPERTY,  OUR BUSINESS
WILL SUFFER.

We depend heavily on technology to operate our business.  Our success depends on
protecting our intellectual property, which is one of our most important assets.
Although  we do  not  currently  hold  any  copyrights,  patents  or  registered
trademarks, we do have intellectual property consisting of:

    o    licensable software products;

    o    rights to certain domain names;

    o    registered service marks on certain names and phrases;

    o    various unregistered trademarks and service marks;

    o    know-how; and

    o    rights to certain logos.

If we do  not  adequately  protect  our  intellectual  property,  our  business,
financial  position  and  results of  operations  would be harmed.  Our means of
protecting our intellectual  property may not be adequate.  Unauthorized parties
may attempt to copy  aspects of our  intellectual  property or to obtain and use
information that we regard as proprietary. In addition,  competitors may be able
to devise  methods of competing  with our  business  that are not covered by our
intellectual   property.  Our  competitors  may  independently  develop  similar
technology,  duplicate our technology or design around any intellectual property
that we may obtain.

The success of some of our business operations depends on the proprietary nature
of certain software.  We do not, however,  have any patents with respect to such
software.  Because  there is no patent  protection  in respect of our  software,
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other  companies  are  not  prevented  from  developing  and  marketing  similar
software.  We  cannot  assure  you,  therefore,  that  we  will  not  face  more
competitors  or that we can  compete  effectively  against  any  companies  that
develop  similar  software.  We also  cannot  assure  you  that  we can  compete
effectively or not suffer from pricing pressure with respect to our existing and
developing  products  that  could  adversely  affect  our  ability  to  generate
revenues.

Although we hold rights to various web domain  names,  regulatory  bodies in the
United States and abroad could establish additional  top-level domains,  appoint
additional  domain name registrars or modify the requirements for holding domain
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names.  The  relationship  between  regulations  governing domain names and laws
protecting  trademarks  and similar  proprietary  rights is  unclear.  We may be
unable to prevent third parties from acquiring  domain names that are similar to
or diminish the value of our proprietary rights.

SERVICE AND OTHER  INTERRUPTIONS  COULD POTENTIALLY REDUCE OUR REVENUES AND HARM
OUR REPUTATION AND FINANCIAL RESULTS.

Our facilities and our customers'  equipment are vulnerable to damage from human
error,  physical or electronic  security  breaches,  power loss,  other facility
failures,  fire,  earthquake,  water  damage,  sabotage,  vandalism  and similar
events. In addition, our customers would be adversely affected by the failure of
carriers to provide network access to our facilities as a result of any of these
events. Any of these events or other unanticipated  problems could interrupt our
customers'  ability to provide  services from our facilities.  This could damage
our reputation,  make it difficult to attract new and retain customers and cause
our customers to terminate their  contracts with us and to seek damages.  Any of
these events could have a material  adverse  effect on our  business,  financial
position and prospects.

WE DEPEND ON  RELATIONSHIPS  WITH THIRD PARTIES,  WHICH, IF NOT MAINTAINED,  MAY
ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR ABILITY TO PROVIDE SERVICES TO OUR CUSTOMERS.

We are not a communications  carrier and,  therefore,  we rely  substantially on
third parties to provide our customers  with access to voice,  data and Internet
networks.  We must maintain  relationships with third-party network providers in
order to offer our data center  customers  access to a choice of networks.  Many
carriers have their own data center  facilities  and may be reluctant to provide
network services at our data centers.  As a result, some carriers may choose not
to connect their  services to our data centers.  We do not own any real property
and depend on our ability to negotiate  favorable lease terms with the owners of
our data center facilities. The use of our IDCs is limited to the extent that we
do not  extend  or  renew  our  leases,  in which  case we might  not be able to
accommodate our customers,  particularly if we were unable to relocate timely to
a comparable facility.

The   availability   of  an  adequate   supply  of  electrical   power  and  the
infrastructure  to deliver  that power is critical to our ability to attract and
retain customers and achieve profitability.  We rely on third parties to provide
electrical  power to our data centers,  and cannot be certain that these parties
will  provide  adequate  electrical  power or that we will  have  the  necessary
infrastructure  to deliver such power to our customers.  If the electrical power
delivered to our facilities is inadequate to support our customers' requirements
or if delivery is not timely,  our results of operations and financial  position
may be materially and adversely affected.
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WE MAY HAVE DIFFICULTY  COLLECTING PAYMENTS FROM SOME OF OUR CUSTOMERS AND INCUR
COSTS AS A RESULT.

A number of our customers are early stage  companies.  In addition,  many of our
customers  are  telecommunications   companies,   and  many   telecommunications
companies have been experiencing significant financial difficulties.  There is a
risk that these companies will experience  difficulty paying amounts owed to us,
and we might not be able to collect on a timely  basis all monies  owed to us by
some of them.  Although  we intend to remove  customers  that do not pay us in a
timely manner,  we may experience  difficulties  and costs in collecting from or
removing these customers.

IF WE DO NOT RESPOND TO FUTURE  ADVANCES IN  TECHNOLOGY  AND CHANGES IN CUSTOMER
DEMANDS,  OUR FINANCIAL  POSITION,  PROSPECTS  AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  MAY BE
ADVERSELY AFFECTED.

The demand for our digital cinema business, movie distribution software and data
centers will be affected,  in large part, by future  advances in technology  and
changes in  customer  demands.  Our  success  will also depend on our ability to
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address the  increasingly  sophisticated  and varied  needs of our  existing and
prospective customers.

We cannot assure you that there will be a demand for the digital cinema software
and delivery services  provided by AccessDM.  AccessDM's  profitability  depends
largely upon the general expansion of digital  presentations at theaters,  which
may not occur for  several  years.  There can be no  assurance  that major movie
studios  relying  on  traditional  distribution  networks  to  provide  physical
delivery of digital files will adopt a different method, particularly electronic
delivery,  of distributing digital content to movie theaters. If the development
of digital presentations and changes in the way digital files are delivered does
not occur, there may be no viable market for AccessDM's software and systems.

WE MAY BE SUBJECT TO  ENVIRONMENTAL  RISKS  RELATING TO THE  ON-SITE  STORAGE OF
DIESEL FUEL AND BATTERIES.

Our data centers contain tanks for the storage of diesel fuel for our generators
and significant  quantities of lead acid batteries used to provide back-up power
generation for uninterrupted  operation of our customers'  equipment.  We cannot
assure you that our  systems  will be free from leaks or that use of our systems
will not result in spills.  Any leak or spill,  depending on such factors as the
nature and quantity of the  materials  involved and the  environmental  setting,
could  result  in   interruptions  to  our  operations  and  the  incurrence  of
significant  costs,   particularly  to  the  extent  we  incur  liability  under
applicable  environmental laws. This could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position and results of operations.

                   RISKS RELATING TO OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK

THE  LIQUIDITY OF OUR CLASS A COMMON  STOCK IS  UNCERTAIN;  THE LIMITED  TRADING
VOLUME OF OUR CLASS A COMMON  STOCK MAY DEPRESS THE PRICE OF SUCH STOCK OR CAUSE
IT TO FLUCTUATE SIGNIFICANTLY.

Although  shares of our Class A common  stock are listed on the  American  Stock
Exchange  (the "AMEX"),  there has been a limited  public market for our Class A
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common stock and there can be no assurance that an active trading market for our
common stock will develop.  As a result, you may not be able to sell your shares
of Class A common stock in short time  periods,  or possibly at all. The absence
of an active  trading market may cause the price per share of our Class A common
stock to fluctuate significantly.

SUBSTANTIAL RESALES OF OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK COULD DEPRESS OUR STOCK PRICE.

The  market  price  for  our  Class  A  common  stock  could  decline,   perhaps
significantly,  as a result of  resales  of a large  number of shares of Class A
common stock in the public market or even the perception that such resales could
occur,  including resales of the shares being registered  hereunder  pursuant to
the registration  statement of which this prospectus is a part. In addition,  we
have a substantial number of options,  warrants and other securities convertible
into shares of our Class A common stock outstanding that may be exercised in the
future. Certain holders of these warrants and convertible securities, as well as
holders  of our  outstanding  shares of Class A common  stock,  have  piggy-back
registration rights and the holder of shares of Class A common stock issuable in
exchange for its shares of preferred  stock and certain  warrants has demand and
piggy-back  registration rights. These factors could also make it more difficult
for us to raise funds through future offerings of our equity securities.

YOU WILL  INCUR  SUBSTANTIAL  DILUTION  AS A RESULT  OF  CERTAIN  FUTURE  EQUITY
ISSUANCES.

We have a substantial number of options, warrants and other securities currently
outstanding which may be immediately converted into shares of our Class A common
stock.  To the extent that these  options,  warrants or similar  securities  are
exercised or  converted,  as the case may be, there will be further  dilution to
holders of shares of our Class A common stock.

                                       16

PROVISIONS OF OUR  CERTIFICATE OF  INCORPORATION  AND DELAWARE LAW COULD MAKE IT
MORE DIFFICULT FOR A THIRD PARTY TO ACQUIRE US.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation, as well as of Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law (the "DGCL") could make it more difficult for a
third  party  to  acquire  us,  even if doing  so  might  be  beneficial  to our
stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of 15,000,000 shares of
preferred  stock. The terms of our preferred stock may be fixed by the company's
board  of  directors  without  further  stockholder  action.  The  terms  of any
outstanding  series or class of preferred  stock may include  priority claims to
assets and dividends and special voting rights, which could adversely affect the
rights of  holders  of our  Class A common  stock.  Any  future  issuance(s)  of
preferred  stock  could  make  the  takeover  of  the  company  more  difficult,
discourage unsolicited bids for control of the company in which our stockholders
could receive  premiums for their shares,  dilute or  subordinate  the rights of
holders of Class A common stock and  adversely  affect the trading  price of our
Class A common stock.

Under Section 203 of the DGCL, Delaware corporations whose securities are listed
on a national  securities  exchange,  like the AMEX,  may not engage in business
combinations such as mergers or acquisitions  with any interested  stockholders,
defined  as an  entity  or  person  beneficially  owning  15%  or  more  of  our
outstanding common stock without obtaining certain prior approvals.  As a result
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of the  application  of Section 203,  potential  acquirers of the company may be
discouraged  from  attempting  to effect  an  acquisition  transaction  with the
company,  thereby depriving holders of the company's securities of opportunities
to sell or otherwise dispose of the securities at prices above prevailing market
prices.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MAINTAIN  LISTING ON THE AMEX,  WHICH MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT
THE ABILITY OF  PURCHASERS  IN THIS  OFFERING TO RESELL THEIR  SECURITIES IN THE
SECONDARY MARKET.

Our Class A common stock is  presently  listed on the AMEX.  However,  we cannot
assure you that the company will meet the criteria for continued  listing on the
AMEX.  If the company is unable to meet the  continued  listing  criteria of the
AMEX and became  delisted,  trading of the Class A common stock could thereafter
be conducted in the  over-the-counter  market in the so-called "pink sheets" or,
if available,  the NASD's  Electronic  Bulletin Board. In such case, an investor
would likely find it more difficult to dispose of, or to obtain  accurate market
quotations for, the company's securities.

If the shares of Class A common  stock  were  delisted  from the AMEX,  they may
become  subject  to Rule 15g-9  under the  Exchange  Act,  which  imposes  sales
practice  requirements  on  broker-dealers  that sell such securities to persons
other than established customers and "accredited investors." Application of this
Rule could adversely affect the ability and/or  willingness of broker-dealers to
sell the company's securities and may adversely affect the ability of purchasers
in this offering to resell their securities in the secondary market.

                           FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Various  statements  contained in this  prospectus or  incorporated by reference
into this prospectus constitute "forward-looking  statements" within the meaning
of  the  Private  Securities  Litigation  Reform  Act of  1995.  Forward-looking
statements  are based on  current  expectations  and are  indicated  by words or
phrases such as "believe,"  "expect," "may," "will,"  "should,"  "seek," "plan,"
"intend" or "anticipate" or the negative thereof or comparable  terminology,  or
by discussion of strategy. Forward-looking statements are primarily contained in
the sections of this prospectus entitled  "Prospectus  Summary," "Risk Factors,"
"Selected Historical and Pro Forma Financial Data," "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of  Financial  Condition  and Results of  Operations"  and  "Business."
Forward-looking  statements  represent  as of the  date of this  prospectus  our
judgment relating to, among other things,  future results of operations,  growth
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plans, sales,  capital requirements and general industry and business conditions
applicable  to us.  Such  forward-looking  statements  are based  largely on our
current expectations and are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties.  Our
actual  results  could  differ  materially  from those that are  anticipated  or
projected as a result of certain  risks and  uncertainties,  including,  but not
limited to, a number of factors, such as:

     o    successful integration of acquired businesses;

     o    the  effect  of  our  indebtedness  on  our  financial  condition  and
          financial flexibility,  including,  but not limited to, the ability to
          obtain necessary financing for our business;

     o    economic and market conditions;
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     o    the performance of our targeted markets;

     o    changes in business relationships with our major customers;

     o    competitive product and pricing pressures; and

     o    the  other  risks  and  uncertainties   that  are  described  in  this
          prospectus and from time to time in our filings with the SEC.

Except as otherwise  required to be disclosed in periodic reports required to be
filed by public  companies with the SEC pursuant to the SEC's rules,  we have no
duty to update these  statements,  and we undertake  no  obligation  to publicly
update or revise  any  forward-looking  statements,  whether  as a result of new
information,   future  events  or  otherwise.   In  light  of  these  risks  and
uncertainties,  we  cannot  assure  you  that  the  forward-looking  information
contained in this prospectus will in fact transpire.

                                 USE OF PROCEEDS

We will  receive no proceeds  from the sale of any of or all of the shares being
offered by the selling security holders under this prospectus. We may receive an
amount of up to approximately  $1,461,000 upon the exercise of the warrants,  if
exercised,  as to which we are  registering  the  underlying  shares  of Class A
common  stock.  Any proceeds  that we receive  from the exercise of  outstanding
warrants will be used by us for general working capital.  The actual  allocation
of proceeds  realized from the exercise of these securities will depend upon the
amount and timing of such exercises, our operating revenues and cash position at
such time and our working capital requirements.  There can be no assurances that
any of the outstanding warrants will be exercised.

                                       18

                                 CAPITALIZATION

The first  column in the  following  table sets forth our  capitalization  as of
March  31,  2004  on  an  actual  basis.   The  second  column  sets  forth  our
capitalization as of December 31, 2004 on an actual basis.  Except share and per
share data, the information in this table is set forth in thousands.  You should
read this  information  together with the financial  statements and the notes to
those statements appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

                                                                                   December 31,
                                                                      March 31,        2004
                                                                        2004        (unaudited)
                                                                      ---------     -----------

Notes payable, including current portion.......................     $6,239             $5,946
Capital leases, including current portion......................        150                515
                                                                       ---                ---

Redeemable Class A common stock, par value $0.001,
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  53,534 shares issued and oustanding............................      238                247

Stockholders' equity:

Common stock, par value $.001; 80,000,000 shares
  authorized; 8,287,541, 9,505,041 and 10,359,139 shares
  issued and outstanding, respectively...........................        8                 11
Treasury Stock, at cost; 9140 shares...........................         --                (32)
Additional paid-in capital.....................................     24,271             30,853
Accumulated deficit............................................    (14,699)           (18,688)
                                                                  --------           --------
Total stockholders' equity.....................................      9,580             12,144

Total capitalization...........................................    $16,207            $18,852
                                                                   =======            =======

The table above  assumes  that no stock  options or warrants  outstanding  as of
March 31, 2004 and December 31, 2004 or granted  thereafter  are  exercised.  In
addition to the shares of capital stock outstanding,  we may issue shares of our
common stock under the following plans and arrangements:

     o    520,564 and 598,897  shares of Class A common  stock  subject to stock
          options  granted  under our 2000 Stock  Option  Plan (the  "Plan") and
          79,436 and 251,103  shares  available for future  issuance  under such
          Plan as of March 31, 2004 and December 31, 2004, respectively;

     o    120,000  shares of Class A common stock  reserved  for  issuance  upon
          exercise  of warrants  issued in  connection  with our initial  public
          offering in November 2003 (the "IPO"), the proceeds of which are to be
          used as working capital for general corporate purposes; and

     o    304,375  shares of Class A common stock  reserved  for  issuance  upon
          exercise of warrants  issued in connection  with our June 2004 private
          placement, the proceeds of which are to be used as working capital for
          general corporate purposes; and

     o    308,225  and  307,871  shares of Class A common  stock as of March 31,
          2004 and December 31, 2004,  respectively,  reserved for issuance upon
          conversion  of notes  payable  issued in  connection  with  March 2004
          exchange of 8% notes payable for 6% convertible notes payable.
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                           PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

We consummated  our IPO at a price of $5.00 per share.  Our Class A common stock
trades  publicly on the AMEX under the trading symbol "AIX." The following table
shows the high and low  sales  prices  per share of our Class A common  stock as
reported by the AMEX for the periods indicated:
                                                            HIGH           LOW

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2004
    Third Quarter (from November 10, 2003)..............   $ 6.95        $ 5.00
    Fourth Quarter......................................   $ 5.30        $ 4.09
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005
    First Quarter ......................................   $ 5.20        $ 4.10
    Second Quarter .....................................   $ 5.15        $ 3.20
    Third Quarter ......................................   $ 4.17        $ 3.75
    Fourth Quarter (through March 1, 2005)..............   $ 5.15        $ 4.81

The last reported sale price of our Class A common stock on the AMEX on March 1,
2005 was $ 4.81 per share.  As of March 1, 2005,  there were  approximately  171
beneficial holders of record of our Class A common stock.

                                 DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock or preferred stock and
do not anticipate paying any on our common stock in the foreseeable  future. Any
future  payment of dividends on our common stock will be in the sole  discretion
of our board of directors.
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                SELECTED HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA

The summary below sets forth certain  selected  historical  financial  data. The
financial data below should be read in conjunction with the historical financial
statements and the notes thereto of our Company and of Hollywood SW and FiberSat
Seller appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

THE COMPANY.  The following tables set forth selected historical  financial data
of our Company at and for each of the fiscal  years ended March 31,  2002,  2003
and 2004 and the nine months ended  December 31, 2004.  The data for each of the
fiscal  years  ended March 31,  2002,  2003 and 2004 has been  derived  from our
audited consolidated financial statements.  The data as of December 31, 2004 and
for the nine months ended  December 31, 2004 has been derived from our unaudited
consolidated  financial  statements.  When you read the selected  financial data
below,  it is important  that you also read our audited  consolidated  financial
statements  and the  notes  to  those  statements  appearing  elsewhere  in this
prospectus,  as well as the section of this  prospectus  entitled  "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."
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                      ACCESS INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
                 (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)

                                                                   FISCAL YEAR ENDED              NINE MONTHS ENDED
                                                                         MARCH 31,                   DECEMBER 31,

                                                            2002           2003          2004            2004
                                                     -----------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                     (unaudited)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA (1):
   Revenues ......................................   $     1,911    $     4,228    $     7,201    $     7,135
   Costs of revenues .............................         1,833          3,101          3,667          4,014
                                                     -----------    -----------    -----------    -----------
   Gross profit ..................................            78          1,127          3,534          3,121

   Selling, general and administrative expenses(2)         2,267          2,305          3,277          3,588
   Provision for doubtful accounts
                                                              --             --             --            598
   Research and development
                                                              --             --             55            288
   Non-cash stock-based compensation
                                                             235             99             15              4
   Depreciation and amortization .................           993          2,692          2,457
                                                     -----------    -----------    -----------    -----------
                                                                                                        1,687
   Loss from operations ..........................   $    (3,417)   $    (2,964)   $    (2,505)   $    (3,814)
   Interest income ...............................            30             13              6             --
   Interest expense(3) ...........................           (83)          (364)          (542)          (279)
                                                                                                          (83)
   Loss on early extinguishment of debt ..........            --             --           (126)            --

   Non-cash interest expense .....................          (140)          (282)        (1,823)          (155)
   Minority interest in subsidiary ...............            --             --             25             10
   Other income ..................................            --              8            (52)            17
                                                     -----------    -----------    -----------    -----------
   Net loss before income taxes ..................   $    (3,610)   $    (3,589)   $    (5,017)   $    (4,221)
   Income tax benefit ............................            --            185            212            233
                                                     -----------    -----------    -----------    -----------
   Net loss ......................................   $    (3,610)   $    (3,404)   $    (4,805)   $    (3,988)
   Preferred stock accretion(4) ..................          (323)          (857)        (1,808)            --
                                                     -----------    -----------    -----------    -----------
   Net loss available to common stockholders .....   $    (3,933)   $    (4,261)   $    (6,613)   $    (3,988)
                                                     ===========    ===========    ===========    ===========
   Net loss available to common stockholders per
     share -
     basic and diluted ...........................   $     (1.21)   $     (1.41)   $     (1.37)   $     (0.42)
                                                     ===========    ===========    ===========    ===========
   Weighted average number of  common shares
     outstanding -
     basic and diluted(5) ........................     3,238,084      3,027,865      4,826,776      9,432,380
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(1)  We acquired one IDC from, and assumed certain liabilities of BridgePoint on
     December  21,  2001.  We  acquired  six  IDCs  from,  and  assumed  certain
     liabilities of  ColoSolutions  on November 27, 2002. We acquired all of the
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     capital  stock of Hollywood SW on November 3, 2003.  We acquired all of the
     outstanding  common stock of Core on January 9, 2004.  We acquired  certain
     assets of Boeing  Digital,  a division  of Boeing,  on March 29,  2004.  We
     acquired  substantially  all of  the  assets  and  certain  liabilities  of
     Fibersat  Seller on November 17, 2004. The above financial data are derived
     from our audited and unaudited financial statements and reflect the results
     of operations of the acquired  entities from the  respective  dates of such
     acquisitions.

(2)  Excludes non-cash,  stock-based  compensation expense of $235,000,  $99,000
     $15,000 and $4,000 for the years ended March 31, 2002,  2003 and 2004,  and
     nine months ended December 31, 2004, respectively.

(3)  Excludes non-cash interest expense related to the accretion of the value of
     warrants  attached to our one- and five-year  promissory notes of $140,000,
     $282,000,  $1,823,000 and $155,000 for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2003
     and 2004, and nine months ended December 31, 2004, respectively.

(4)  Reflects the accretion of dividends,  expenses and warrants on our Series A
     and Series B preferred  stock and a  beneficial  conversion  feature of our
     Series A preferred stock.

(5)  The  information  regarding net loss per common share and weighted  average
     number of common  shares for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003
     gives effect to the  one-for-five  reverse  stock split of our common stock
     effected in September 2003.

                      ACCESS INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
                        (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA)

                                                               AT MARCH 31,               AT DECEMBER 31,
                                                    ------------------------------------ ----------------
                                                         2002        2003        2004         2004
                                                    ------------ ---------- ------------ ----------------
                                                                                          (unaudited)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
   Cash and cash equivalents..............            $ 1,001     $    956    $ 2,330      $ 1,515
   Working capital (deficit)..............                378         (954)       212          244
   Total assets...........................              8,616        9,894     21,175       23,251
   Current portion of notes payable...............        333        1,152        650        1,009
   Capital lease obligations..............                440          513        150          515
   Long-term debt, net of current portion.                921        1,730      5,589        4,937
   Total liabilities..............................      3,652        5,355     11,357       10,860
   Mandatorily redeemable, convertible
   preferred stock................................        251        2,911         --           --
   Redeemable common stock........................         --           --        238          247
   Total stockholders' equity ....................    $ 4,713     $  1,628    $ 9,580      $12,144
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HOLLYWOOD SOFTWARE. The following table sets forth selected historical financial
data of Hollywood SW for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003.
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                            HOLLYWOOD SOFTWARE, INC.
                 (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)

                                                     FISCAL YEAR ENDED
                                                     MARCH 31, 2003
                                                     -----------------

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
 Revenues......................................        $ 1,908
 Cost of revenues..............................            319
 Gross profit..................................          1,589
 Research and development......................            289
 Selling, general and administrative expenses..          1,131
 Income from operations........................            169
 Other expense.................................            (2)
 Net income....................................           $118
 Net income per share - basic and diluted......           $.01
 Weighted average number of common shares
        outstanding
 - basic.......................................     10,000,000
 - diluted.....................................     10,293,167

FIBERSAT SELLER.  The following table sets forth selected  historical  financial
data of FiberSat  Seller for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the nine month
period ended September 30, 2004.

                          FIBERSAT GLOBAL SERVICES, LLC
                                 (IN THOUSANDS)

                                                                         NINE MONTHS
                                                     YEAR ENDED             ENDED
                                                  DECEMBER 31, 2003   SEPTEMBER 30, 2004
                                                  -----------------   ------------------
                                                                         (unaudited)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
 Revenues......................................        $ 3,408            $ 2,567
 Cost of revenues..............................          1,093                740
 Gross profit..................................          2,315              1,827
 Selling, general and administrative expenses..          1,833                981
 Depreciation and amortization.................            884                548
 Impairment loss...............................             --                358
                                                       -------            -------
 Loss from operations..........................           (402)               (60)
 Interest income...............................             51                  2
 Interest expense..............................           (245)              (120)
                                                       -------            -------
 Net loss before income taxes..................           (596)              (178)
 Income tax expense                                         (3)               (5)
                                                       --------           -------
 Net loss......................................        $  (599)           $  (183)
                                                       ========           ========
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SELECTED UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth selected  unaudited pro forma condensed  combined
statement of operations  data of our Company for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2004 and for the nine months ended December 31, 2004, after giving effect to the
transactions  discussed in the overview of the pro forma data  beginning on page
P-1  of  this  prospectus.   The  Hollywood  SW  Acquisition  and  the  FiberSat
Acquisition  were  accounted for using the purchase  method of  accounting  and,
accordingly,  the assets,  liabilities and results of operations of Hollywood SW
and FiberSat Seller have been included in our Company's  consolidated  financial
statements subsequent to their acquisition date.

The following  selected  unaudited  financial data should be read in conjunction
with the  historical  financial  statements  of our Company,  Hollywood  SW, and
FiberSat  Seller,  and the unaudited pro forma condensed  combined  consolidated
financial information,  including the notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this
prospectus.  The unaudited pro forma condensed combined information is presented
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily  indicative of the results
of operations that would have occurred if the transactions had been completed at
the dates  indicated,  nor is it  necessarily  indicative  of future  results of
operations of the combined company.

                      ACCESS INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
                 (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)

                                                               FISCAL YEAR ENDED
                                                                 MARCH 31, 2004
                                                               -----------------

PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

   Revenues..................................................       $ 11,581

   Cost of revenues..........................................          5,078
                                                                       -----
   Gross profit..............................................          6,503
   Selling, general and administrative expenses..............          5,793
   Research and development..................................            273
   Non-cash stock-based compensation.........................            470
   Depreciation and amortization.............................          3,578
                                                                       -----
   Loss from operations .....................................         (3,611)
   Interest income...........................................             57
   Interest expense..........................................           (802)
   Loss on early extinguishment of debt......................           (126)
   Non-cash interest expense.................................         (1,823)
   Minority interest in subsidiary...........................             25
   Other expense, net........................................            (52)
                                                                   ---------
   Net loss before income taxes..............................         (6,332)
   Income tax benefit........................................            161
                                                                    --------
   Net loss .................................................         (6,171)
   Accretion related to redeemable convertible
       Preferred stock.......................................         (1,588)
   Accretion of preferred dividends..........................           (220)
                                                                       -----
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   Net loss available to common stockholders.................        $(7,979)
                                                                    ========
   Net loss per share - basic
     and diluted ............................................         $(1.42)
                                                                     =======
   Weighted average number of common
     shares for net loss per share
     computations - basic and diluted .......................      5,610,492
                                                                   =========
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                                                               NINE MONTHS ENDED
                                                               DECEMBER 31, 2004
PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
   Revenues................................................              $ 9,702
   Cost of revenues........................................                4,754
                                                                         -------
   Gross profit............................................                4,948

     Selling, general and administrative expenses..........                4,569
     Provisions for doubtful accounts......................                  598
     Research and Development..............................                  288
     Non-Cash Stock-Based Compensation.....................                    4
     Depreciation and Amortization.........................                2,897
   Loss From Operations ...................................              (3,408)

   Interest Income.........................................                    2
   Interest Expense........................................                (341)
   Non-Cash Interest Expense...............................                (155)
   Other Expense, Net......................................                   17
   Income Tax Benefit (Expense)............................                  228
   Minority Interest in Subsidiary                                            10
                                                                         -------
   Net Loss ...............................................              (3,647)

   Net Loss Available to Common Stockholders...............             $(3,647)
                                                                         =======
   Net Loss Available to Common Stockholders
   per Common Share
       Basic and Diluted...................................              $(0.39)
                                                                         =======
   Weighted average number of common
   outstanding shares - Basic and diluted .................            9,432,380
                                                                       =========
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                           MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
            ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The  following  discussion  should  be read in  conjunction  with the  financial
statements  and related  notes  appearing  elsewhere  in this  prospectus.  This
discussion   contains   forward-looking   statements   that  involve  risks  and
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uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated
in those forward-looking statements as a result of factors described within this
prospectus   and  other  factors.   We  refer  you  to  the  section   captioned
"Forward-Looking Statements" in this prospectus.

OVERVIEW

AccessIT was organized on March 31, 2000 and we are in the business of providing
software services and technology  solutions to the motion picture industry,  and
operating IDCs.  Recently,  we have actively  expanded into new and interrelated
business areas relating to the delivery and management of digital cinema content
to  entertainment  venues  worldwide.  These  businesses,  supported  by our IDC
business,  have become our primary  strategic  focus.  Our business  focus is to
create a secure,  managed and complete system that consists of software to book,
track and perform  accounting  functions for digital  content in movie theatres,
deliver digital content to multiple locations and provide the content management
software for managing all brands of in-theatre  playback  systems and projection
systems for the digital  cinema  marketplace.  This system is designed to enable
the motion picture  industry to move from the analog world to the digital world.
The system is intended to use all of our businesses:

MEDIA SERVICES

     o    DIGITAL MEDIA DELIVERY - digital media managed  delivery  services and
          theater  management  player software for use in theatres from AccessDM
          and satellite  delivery  services  from  FiberSat.  ADM Cinema,  which
          acquired the Pavilion Theatre,  will utilize our digital media managed
          delivery services and media player software products; and

     o    MOVIE  DISTRIBUTION AND EXHIBITOR SOFTWARE - Hollywood SW develops and
          licenses distribution and exhibitor software products and services.

DATA CENTER SERVICES

     o    DATA  CENTERS -  AccessIT's  IDCs,  including  redundant  sites in Los
          Angeles and New York City; and

     o    MANAGED  SERVICE  OFFERINGS - managed  storage and network and systems
          management services by Core and AccessIT.

Our system provides a digital content owner with the secure delivery of multiple
files to multiple locations throughout the world with proactive notification and
security management. Our system also provides the digital content exhibitor with
access to digital  content,  freedom to choose  what to play and when to play it
with proactive  notifications and management software.  We have created a system
whereby  digital content is delivered where it is supposed to go, is played when
it is supposed  to be played  along with the ability to act upon and report back
management and financial information.  We also have created software designed to
enable a movie exhibitor to run all projectors in a multiple  auditorium theatre
from one central server, regardless of the hardware type or manufacturer.

In  February  2003,  we  organized  AccessDM,  which  in May  2004,  became  our
wholly-owned  subsidiary.  AccessDM has developed proprietary software,  Digital
Express  e-Courier,  capable of worldwide  delivery of digital data -- including
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movies,  advertisements and alternative  content such as concerts,  seminars and
sporting events -- to movie theaters and other venues having digital  projection
equipment.  We are also in the process of developing  media player  software for
use by digitally-equipped movie theaters called Theatre Command Centre.

In November  2003,  we  acquired  all of the capital  stock of  Hollywood  SW, a
leading  provider of proprietary  transactional  support software and consulting
services for distributors  and exhibitors of filmed  entertainment in the United
States and  Canada.  Its  licensed  software  records  and  manages  information
relating to the planning,  scheduling,  revenue sharing, cash flow and reporting
associated  with  the  distribution  and  exhibition  of  theatrical  films.  In
addition,   Hollywood  SW's  software  complements,   and  is  integrated  with,
AccessDM's   digital  content  delivery  software  by  enabling  Hollywood  SW's
customers  to  seamlessly  plan and  schedule  delivery  of  digital  content to
entertainment  venue  operators  as  well as to  manage  the  related  financial
transactions.

In an effort to increase the  competitive  advantage of the IDCs,  on January 9,
2004, we acquired Core, a managed service provider of information  technologies.
As an information  technology  outsourcing  organization,  Core manages clients'
networks and systems in over 35  countries  in Europe,  Asia and North and South
America and more than 20 states in the United States. Core operates a 24x7 GNCC,
capable of running the networks and systems of large  corporate  clients.  The 4
largest  customers of Core accounted for  approximately  77% of its revenues for
the year ended March 31, 2004. The managed  services  capabilities  of Core have
been integrated with our IDCs and now operate under the name of AccessIT Managed
Services.

In March  2004,  we acquired  certain  assets of Boeing  Digital,  a division of
Boeing. These assets were purchased to further our strategy of becoming a leader
in the  delivery  of movies and other  digital  content to movie  theaters.  The
acquired  assets  consist  of  digital  projectors,  satellite  dishes and other
equipment installed at 28 screens within 21 theaters in the United States and at
one location in London,  England, and satellite  transmission equipment which we
installed in Los Angeles, California.

Also in March 2004, we refinanced  approximately $4.2 aggregate principal amount
(plus  accrued  and unpaid  interest)  of our  promissory  notes  pursuant to an
exchange  offer.  In exchange  for these  promissory  notes,  we issued  707,477
unregistered  shares of our  Class A common  stock  and $1.7  million  aggregate
principal  amount  of new  convertible  notes  which as of March  1,  2005  were
convertible into a maximum of 310,857 shares of our Class A common stock.

In June 2004,  we  consummated a $4.87  million  private  placement of 1,217,500
unregistered  shares of our Class A common  stock with  institutional  and other
accredited investors.  Pursuant to the private placement,  we also issued to the
investors and the placement  agent warrants to purchase up to 243,500 and 60,875
shares of our Class A common stock, respectively,  at an exercise price of $4.80
per share, exercisable upon receipt.

In November  2004, we  consummated a $1.1 million  private  placement of 282,776
unregistered  shares of our Class A common stock at $3.89 per share with certain
accredited  investors.  The net  proceeds of $1.023  million  from such  private
placement were used for the FiberSat Acquisition and for working capital.

Also in November 2004, we acquired  substantially  all of the assets of FiberSat
Seller through  FiberSat.  FiberSat,  headquartered  in Chatsworth,  California,
provides  services   utilizing   satellite  ground  facilities  and  fiber-optic
connectivity to receive,  process,  store,  encrypt and transmit  television and
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data signals  globally.  FiberSat's  Chatsworth  facility  currently  houses the
infrastructure  operations of our digital cinema satellite delivery services. By
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completing the FiberSat Acquisition,  we gained extensive satellite distribution
and  networking  capabilities  provided by  FiberSat's  fully  operational  data
storage and uplink facility  located in Los Angeles,  California.  FiberSat has,
and will continue to, provide  broadband video,  data and Internet  transmission
and  encryption  services for  multiple  customers  in the  broadcast  and cable
television and communications industries.

In February  2005,  we  consummated  a private  placement of $7.6 million of the
Convertible Debentures.  The Convertible Debentures bear interest at the rate of
7% per year and are  convertible  into shares of our Class A common stock at the
price of $4.07 per share,  subject to possible adjustments from time to time. In
connection with the Convertible  Debenture offering, we issued the participating
institutional investors the Convertible Debentures Warrants,  exercisable for up
to 560,197 shares of Class A common stock at an initial  exercise price of $4.44
per share, subject to adjustments from time to time. The Convertible  Debentures
Warrants  may be  exercised  beginning  on  September  9, 2005  until five years
thereafter.

Also in February 2005, we consummated  the acquisition of  substantially  all of
the assets of the  Pavilion  Theatre.  The Pavilion  Theatre is an  eight-screen
movie  theatre and cafe and will be a component of the Media  Services  segment.
Continuing to operate as a fully functional multiplex, the Pavilion Theatre will
also become our showplace to demonstrate our integrated digital cinema solutions
to the movie entertainment industry

We offer  interrelated  services  that use each of our  business  units  for the
planning,  purchasing,  delivery and  management  of digital  content -- such as
movies,  advertising,  trailers and  alternative  content,  including  concerts,
seminars and sporting events -- to movie theater and other venue  operators.  We
believe that our ability to offer a wide range of fully  managed  services  will
differentiate us from other service providers,  including  distributors of other
types of digital media.

We have two reportable  segments:  Data Center Services,  which comprise our IDC
operations and the operations of Core; and Media Services,  which represents the
operations of Hollywood SW, AccessDM  (including  Boeing Digital),  FiberSat and
ADM Cinema.  For the three months ended  December 31, 2004,  we received 47% and
53%,  respectively,  of our  revenue  from the Media  Services  and Data  Center
Services segments.  For the nine months ended December 31, 2004, we received 35%
and 65%, respectively,  of our revenue from the Media Services and Data Services
segments.

From our  inception  through  November 3, 2003,  all of our  revenues  have been
derived  from  monthly  license  fees and fees  from  other  ancillary  services
provided  by us at our IDCs.  We do not  intend to build  any  additional  IDCs.
Instead,  we may continue  expanding our IDC footprint by acquiring  additional,
operational  IDCs from third  parties.  Hollywood  SW  generates  revenues  from
software license fees, ASP fees, enhancements,  consulting and maintenance fees.
Core  generates  revenues  primarily  from managed  network  services.  AccessDM
generates  revenues  from the  delivery of movies and other  content  into movie
theaters.  We incurred net losses of $2.33  million and $4.0 million in the nine
months  ended  December  31,  2003  and  2004,  respectively,  and  we  have  an
accumulated  deficit of $18.7  million as of December  31, 2004.  We  anticipate
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that,  with the  acquisitions  of  Hollywood  SW, Core,  FiberSat,  the Pavilion
Theatre and substantially all of the assets of Boeing Digital, and the operation
of AccessDM,  our results of operations will improve.  As we grow, we expect our
operating costs and general and  administrative  expenses will also increase for
the  foreseeable  future,  but as a lower  percentage  of  revenue.  In order to
achieve  and  sustain  profitable  operations,  we will  need to  generate  more
revenues, and we may need to obtain additional financing,  than we have in prior
years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND USE OF ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations
are based upon our consolidated  financial statements,  which have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.  The preparation of consolidated  financial statements in conformity
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with accounting  principles  generally  accepted in the United States of America
requires  our  management  to make  estimates  and  assumptions  that affect the
reported  amounts of assets and  liabilities  and the  disclosure  of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated  financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting  period.  Our
most significant  estimates relate to software revenue recognition,  capitalized
software,  depreciation of fixed assets and  amortization of intangible  assets.
Actual  results  could differ from these  estimates.  On an on-going  basis,  we
evaluate our estimates,  including  those related to the carrying  values of our
fixed  assets  and  intangible  assets.  We base  our  estimates  on  historical
experience  and on various  other  assumptions  that we believe to be reasonable
under the  circumstances  made,  the  results of which form the basis for making
judgments  about the  carrying  values of assets  and  liabilities  that are not
readily  apparent  from other  sources.  Actual  results could differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe that the following critical  accounting policies and estimates affect
our more  significant  estimates and judgments  used in the  preparation  of our
consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Through  December  31,  2004,  our Media  Services  segment  revenues  have been
primarily  generated by Hollywood SW, and are  accounted for in accordance  with
Statement of Position 97-2  "Software  Revenue  Recognition"  ("SOP 97-2"),  and
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, "Revenue  Recognition." Our software revenues
are generated from the following primary sources:

     o    software  licensing,   including  customer  licenses  and  Application
          Service Provider ("ASP") agreements;

     o    software maintenance contracts; and

     o    professional    consulting    services,    which   includes    systems
          implementation,  training,  custom software  development  services and
          other professional services.

     o    Software  licensing revenue is recognized when the following  criteria
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          are met:

     o    persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

     o    delivery has occurred and no significant obligations remain;

     o    the fee is fixed or determinable; and

     o    collection is determined to be probable.

Significant  upfront  fees are  received in addition  to periodic  amounts  upon
achievement  of contractual  events for licensing of our products.  Such amounts
are  deferred  until  the  revenue  recognition  criteria  has been  met,  which
typically occurs after delivery and acceptance.

For  arrangements  with  multiple  elements  (e.g.,  delivered  and  undelivered
products,  maintenance and other services), we separately negotiate each element
of the arrangement based on the fair value of the elements.  The fair values for
ongoing  maintenance  and support  obligations  are based upon separate sales of
renewals  to  customers  or  upon  substantive   renewal  rates  quoted  in  the
agreements.  The fair values for services,  such as training or consulting,  are
based upon hourly billing rates of these services when sold  separately to other
customers.  In instances  where we are not able to determine  fair value of each
element and the services are essential to the functionality of the software,  we
follow percentage-of-completion accounting to recognize revenue.
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Customers not wishing to license and operate our software themselves may use the
software  through  an ASP  arrangement,  in which we host  the  application  and
provide  customer  access via the internet.  Annual minimum ASP service fees are
recognized  ratably over the contract term. Overage revenues for usage in excess
of stated minimums are recognized monthly.

Maintenance  services and website  subscription fees are recognized ratably over
the  contract  term.  Professional  consulting  services,  sales of third  party
products and resale  hardware  revenues are recognized as services are provided.
Software  development  revenues are recognized when delivery has occurred and no
significant obligations remain.

Deferred revenue is recorded in cases of:

     o    a portion  or the  entire  contract  amount  cannot be  recognized  as
          revenue due to  non-delivery  or  acceptance  of licensed  software or
          custom programming;

     o    incomplete implementation of ASP service arrangements; or

     o    unexpired pro-rata periods of maintenance, minimum ASP service fees or
          website subscription fees.

As  license  fees,  maintenance  fees,  minimum  ASP  service  fees and  website
subscription  fees are often  paid in  advance,  a portion  of this  revenue  is
deferred  until the  contract  ends.  Such  amounts are  classified  as deferred
revenue  in the  consolidated  balance  sheet and are  recognized  as revenue in
accordance with our revenue recognition policies described above.

In addition,  revenues in the Media Services  segment  include  digital cinema -
related revenues generated by AccessDM.  These revenues consist of (1) satellite
delivery revenues, (2) encryption and preparation fee revenues, (3) landing fees
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for  delivery  to  each  movie  theatre.  These  revenues  are  recognized  upon
completion of the related services.

Our Data Center Services segment revenues consist of license fees for colocation
space, riser access charges,  electric and cross-connect fees, and non-recurring
equipment  installation  fees.  Revenues  from our IDCs,  riser access  charges,
electric and cross-connect fees are billed monthly and, in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104, "Revenue  Recognition," are recognized ratably over
the  terms of the  contracts,  generally  two to nine  years.  Certain  customer
contracts  contain periodic  increases in the amount of license fees to be paid,
and those  amounts are  recognized  as license fee  revenues on a  straight-line
basis over the term of the contracts. Installation fees are recognized on a time
and  materials  basis in the  period in which the  services  were  provided  and
represent the culmination of the earnings process as no significant  obligations
remain.  Amounts  such as  prepaid  license  fees and other  amounts,  which are
collected  prior to  satisfying  the above  revenue  recognition  criteria,  are
classified  as  deferred   revenues.   Amounts   satisfying  the  above  revenue
recognition  criteria prior to billing are classified as unbilled  revenues.  In
addition,  within our Data Center  Services  segment,  Core revenues  consist of
network monitoring and maintenance fees. These fees consist of monthly recurring
billings  pursuant to contracts,  which are  recognized as revenues in the month
earned, and other billings which are recognized on a time and materials basis in
the period in which the services were provided.

The adoption of Staff Accounting  Bulletin No. 104,  "Revenue  Recognition," did
not affect our revenue recognition policies.

CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE COSTS

We account for software costs under Statement of Financial  Accounting Standards
("SFAS")  No. 86,  "Accounting  for the Costs of  Computer  Software to Be Sold,
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Leased,  or Otherwise  Marketed."  Software  development costs that are incurred
subsequent to establishing technological  feasibility,  and until the product is
commercially  released,   are  capitalized.   Amounts  capitalized  as  software
development costs are generally amortized  periodically using a formula based on
the greater of the units sold during the period or on a straight-line basis over
five years.  We review  capitalized  software  costs for impairment on an annual
basis.  To the  extent  that the  carrying  amount  exceeds  the  estimated  net
realizable  value of the  capitalized  software  cost, an  impairment  charge is
recorded.  No  impairment  was recorded for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004
and the nine  months  ended  December  31,  2004.  Amortization  of  capitalized
software development costs,  included in costs of revenues,  for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2004  amounted  to  $118,000,  and for the three and nine months
ended December 31, 2004 amounted to $92,000 and $220,000, respectively.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

We have  adopted  SFAS No.  141,  "Business  Combinations"  and  SFAS  No.  142,
"Goodwill  and other  Intangible  Assets."  SFAS No. 141  requires  all business
combinations  to be accounted for using the purchase  method of  accounting  and
that  certain  intangible  assets  acquired  in a business  combination  must be
recognized  as  assets  separate  from  goodwill.  SFAS No.  142  addresses  the
recognition and measurement of goodwill and other intangible  assets  subsequent
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to their  acquisition.  SFAS No. 142 also addresses the initial  recognition and
measurement of intangible  assets  acquired  outside of a business  combination,
whether  acquired  individually or with a group of other assets.  This statement
provides that intangible  assets with indefinite  lives and goodwill will not be
amortized but will be tested at least annually for impairment.  If an impairment
is indicated,  then the asset will be written down to its fair value,  typically
based upon its future expected  discounted cash flows.  Intangible assets of the
Company as of March 31, 2003  consisted  of  customer  contracts.  In  addition,
during the fiscal year ended March 31,  2004,  the Company  acquired  intangible
assets related to customer contracts,  trade names, trademarks and covenants not
to compete,  which are  estimated  to have useful  lives of ranging from 2 to 10
years. As of December 31, 2004, our finite-lived  intangible assets consisted of
customer agreements, covenants not to compete, Federal Communications Commission
licenses for satellite transmission services, trade names and trademarks,  which
are  estimated to have useful lives of ranging from 2 to 10 years.  In addition,
the Company  has  recorded  goodwill  in  connection  with the  acquisitions  of
Hollywood SW, Core and FiberSat.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property  and  equipment  are  stated at cost,  less  accumulated  depreciation.
Depreciation  is recorded  using the  straight-line  method  over the  estimated
useful  lives  of  the  respective  assets.  Leasehold  improvements  are  being
amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the
improvement.  Maintenance  and repair  costs are charged to expense as incurred.
Major renewals, improvements and additions are capitalized.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

We review the  recoverability  of our  long-lived  assets on a periodic basis in
order to identify business conditions, which may indicate a possible impairment.
The  assessment  for potential  impairment is based  primarily on our ability to
recover  the  carrying  value of our  long-lived  assets  from  expected  future
undiscounted cash flows. If the total of expected future undiscounted cash flows
is less than the total  carrying  value of the assets,  a loss is recognized for
the difference  between the fair value  (computed based upon the expected future
discounted cash flows) and the carrying value of the assets.

DESCRIPTION OF LINE ITEMS

The  following is a  description  of certain line items from our  statements  of
operations:
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     o    Media Services revenues include charges for software license fees, ASP
          service fees,  consulting,  development and maintenance fees,  digital
          delivery and digital  media  software  license  fees.  Media  Services
          revenue are those  generated by Hollywood  SW,  AccessDM and FiberSat.
          Our Data Center Services  revenues include charges for monthly license
          fees  for  IDC  space,   electric  fees,   riser  access  charges  and
          installation fees, and managed network monitoring fees.

     o    Cost of revenues  consists of facility  operating  costs such as rent,
          utilities,  real estate taxes, repairs and maintenance,  insurance and
          other related  expenses,  direct  personnel costs and  amortization of
          capitalized software development costs.

     o    Selling,  general and  administrative  expenses  consist  primarily of
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          salaries  and  related   personnel  costs  for  management  and  other
          headquarters  office  employees,  professional  fees,  advertising and
          marketing  costs,  and  our  corporate  and  divisional   headquarters
          facility costs.

     o    Provision for doubtful accounts represents amounts deemed not probable
          of collection from customers.

     o    Non-cash,  stock-based  compensation  represents the value of employee
          and non-employee stock options and restricted stock grants,  amortized
          over the vesting periods (if any).

     o    Non-cash  interest  expense  represents  the accretion of the value of
          warrants attached to our five-year  promissory notes, and the imputing
          of interest on a non-interest bearing note payable.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

On November  10,  2003,  our  registration  statement  on Form SB-2 was declared
effective  by the SEC.  In  connection  with the  completion  of IPO,  we issued
1,380,000 shares of Class A common stock, 180,000 of which shares were issued in
connection with the lead underwriter's exercise of its over-allotment option, at
$5.00 per share.  The net  proceeds  from the IPO after  deducting  all offering
expenses,  including underwriting discounts and commissions, the cash portion of
the purchase  price of Hollywood SW, and the  repayment of a note  payable,  was
approximately $1,067,000. We are listed on the AMEX under the symbol "AIX".

PRIVATE PLACEMENTS

On June 4, 2004,  we concluded  the private  placement  with  several  investors
whereby we issued 1,217,500 unregistered shares of our Class A common stock at a
sale  price of $4.00  per  share.  The total net  proceeds,  including  fees and
expenses to register the securities were  approximately  $4.0 million,  which is
being used for  capital  investments  and  working  capital.  We also  issued to
investors  and to the  investment  firm  in our  June  2004  private  placement,
warrants to purchase a total of 304,375 shares of our Class A common stock at an
exercise price of $4.80 per share,  which became  exercisable  upon receipt.  We
agreed to file a  registration  statement for the resale of these shares and the
shares  underlying  the warrants with the SEC by filing a Form SB-2 on or before
July 5,  2004.  We filed  the Form SB-2 on July 2,  2004,  and the Form SB-2 was
declared effective on July 20, 2004.

In November  2004, we  consummated a $1.1 million  private  placement of 282,776
unregistered  shares of our Class A common stock at $3.89 per share with certain
accredited  investors.  These shares  carry  piggyback  and demand  registration
rights, at the sole expense of the investors. The net proceeds of $1.023 million
from such  private  placement  were used for the  FiberSat  Acquisition  and for
working capital.

In February  2005,  we  consummated  a private  placement of $7.6 million of the
Convertible Debentures.  The Convertible Debentures bear interest at the rate of
7% per year and are  convertible  into shares of our Class A common stock at the
price of $4.07 per share,  subject to possible adjustments from time to time. In
connection with the Convertible  Debenture offering, we issued the participating
institutional investors the Convertible Debentures Warrants,  exercisable for up
to 560,197 shares of Class A common stock at an initial  exercise price of $4.44
per share, subject to adjustments from time to time. The Convertible  Debentures
Warrants  may be  exercised  beginning  on  September  9, 2005  until five years
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thereafter.
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ACCESS DIGITAL MEDIA

AccessDM  was  formed in  February  2003 by  AccessIT.  AccessDM  has  completed
development of its proprietary software enabling the delivery of digital content
-- such  as  movies,  advertising,  trailers  and  alternative  content  such as
concerts,  seminars  and sporting  events -- to movie  theaters and other venues
equipped with digital projection equipment.

AccessDM has been, and will continue in the  foreseeable  future to be, financed
principally  by AccessIT.  In March 2003,  we engaged The Casey  Group,  Inc., a
software  consulting  company,  to help develop software  designed to enable the
delivery of digital content. As compensation for assisting us in the development
of the software,  the cost of which was agreed to be $174,000,  we issued to The
Casey Group 750,000 shares of AccessDM  common stock in September 2003 and 8,700
shares of AccessIT Class A common stock in November  2003.  The AccessDM  shares
issued to The Casey Group  represented  20% of  AccessDM's  outstanding  capital
stock after giving effect to such issuance.  On May 26, 2004,  AccessIT  entered
into an agreement  with The Casey Group to issue 31,300  unregistered  shares of
our Class A common stock in exchange for the 750,000 shares of AccessDM's common
stock held by The Casey  Group.  Following  such  exchange,  as of May 26, 2004,
AccessIT owns 100% of AccessDM's outstanding common stock.

The  operations of AccessDM are controlled by AccessIT,  and certain  members of
the senior  management of AccessIT are also members of the senior  management of
AccessDM.  All  intercompany  transactions  between  AccessIT  and  AccessDM are
conducted as  transactions  on  competitive  terms,  including  the terms of any
future  investments  by AccessIT in AccessDM  and the terms of any  intercompany
sales. For the nine months ended December 31, 2004,  AccessDM generated $173,000
of revenues.

ACQUISITIONS

On July 17, 2003, we signed a stock purchase agreement with Hollywood SW and its
two selling  stockholders.  On November 3, 2003, we acquired Hollywood SW, after
amending  the  agreement to complete the  acquisition  on that date,  by issuing
secured promissory notes (the "Initial Notes"),  each in the principal amount of
$3.6  million,  to the two  selling  stockholders.  On  November  10,  2003,  we
completed the IPO and (1) the Initial Notes were exchanged for the consideration
described  in clauses  (2) and (3) below and  cancelled  and  returned  to us by
Hollywood  SW's  selling  stockholders,  (2)  the  lead  underwriter  in the IPO
transmitted, in the aggregate, $2.45 million to the selling stockholders and (3)
we issued to such selling  stockholders  $3 million in 8%  promissory  notes and
400,000 unregistered shares of our Class A common stock.

We may pay an additional purchase price in each of argin: 0; text-align: justify"> 

The Company's activities are subject to extensive governmental regulation. Oil and gas operations are subject to
various federal, state and local governmental regulations that may be changed from time to time in response to
economic or political conditions. From time to time, regulatory agencies have imposed price controls and limitations
on production in order to conserve supplies of oil and gas. In addition, the production, handling, storage,
transportation and disposal of oil and gas, by-products thereof and other
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substances and materials produced or used in connection with oil and gas operations are subject to regulation under
federal, state and local laws and regulations primarily relating to protection of human health and the environment. To
date, expenditures related to complying with these laws and for remediation of existing environmental contamination
have not been significant in relation to the operations of the Company. There can be no assurance that the trend of
more expansive and stricter environmental legislation and regulations will not continue.

The Company is subject to intense competition.

The Company operates in a highly competitive environment and competes with major and independent oil and gas
companies for the acquisition of desirable oil and gas properties, as well as for the equipment and labor required to
develop and operate such properties. Many of these competitors have financial and other resources substantially
greater than those of the Company.

The Company currently depends on the Company's Chief Executive Officer.

The Company is dependent on the experience, abilities and continued services of its current Chief Executive Officer
and President, Albert E. Whitehead. The loss or reduction of services of Mr. Whitehead could have a material adverse
effect on the Company.

There has been a limited public trading market for the Company's Common Stock, and there can be no
assurance that an active trading market will be sustained.

There can be no assurance that the Common Stock will trade at or above any particular price in the public market, if at
all. The trading price of the Common Stock could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to variations in
quarterly operating results or even mild expressions of interest on a given day. Accordingly, the Common Stock could
experience substantial price changes in short periods of time. Even if the Company is performing according to its plan
and there is no legitimate company-specific financial basis for this volatility, it must still be expected that substantial
percentage price swings will occur in the Company's Common Stock

for the foreseeable future.

The Company does not expect to declare or pay any dividends in the foreseeable future.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends on its Common Stock. The Company currently intends to retain
future earnings to fund the development and growth of its business, to repay indebtedness and for general corporate
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purposes, and therefore, does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on its Common Stock in the foreseeable future.

The Company's Common Stock may be subject to secondary trading restrictions related to penny stocks.

Certain transactions involving the purchase or sale of Common Stock of the Company may be affected by a SEC rule
for "penny stocks" that imposes additional sales practice burdens and requirements upon broker-dealers that purchase
or sell such securities. For transactions covered by this penny stock rule, broker-dealers must make certain disclosures
to purchasers prior to purchase or sale. Consequently, the penny stock rule may impede the ability of broker-dealers to
purchase or sell the Company's securities for their customers and the ability of persons now owning or subsequently
acquiring the Company's securities to resell such securities.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

GENERAL TO ALL PERIODS

The Company's primary business is the exploration and development of oil and gas interests. The Company has
incurred significant losses from operations, and there is no assurance that it will achieve profitability or obtain funds
necessary to finance its operations.

For all periods presented, the Company's effective tax rate is 0%. The Company has generated net operating losses
since inception, which would normally reflect a tax benefit in the statement of operations and a deferred asset on the
balance sheet. However, because of the current uncertainty as to the Company's ability to achieve profitability, a
valuation reserve has been established that offsets the amount of any tax benefit available for each period presented in
the statements of operations.

TWELVE MONTH PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, COMPARED TO TWELVE MONTH PERIOD
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, sales revenue was $0. The Company does not have any
producing wells at this time.

Production and operating expenses decreased $7,314 to $14,746 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012,
from $22,060 for the same period in 2011. This decrease was primarily due to the refund of certain costs incurred on
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the Gabbs Valley test well in 2010.

General and administrative and lease abandonment expenses increased by $8,553 to $230,686 for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2012, from $222,133 for the same period in 2011. The increase was primarily due to a write off
of a South Okie Prospect lease.

For the reasons discussed above, net loss increased $5,916 from $(247,432) for the twelve months ended December
31, 2011, to $(253,348) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

GENERAL

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had $20,766 of cash on hand. The Company's cash on hand will not be
sufficient to fund its operations during the next 12 months. The Company expects to incur costs of approximately
$10,000 per month relating to general administrative, office and other expenses. In order to sustain the Company's
operations on a long term basis, the Company intends to continue to look for merger opportunities and consider public
or private financings. To the extent that it is necessary, the Company expects that management will support the
Company financially for several months to allow the Company to consummate a merger opportunity, or public or
private financing.

PRIVATE EQUITY PLACEMENTS

In a private placement concluded on January 26, 2010, the Company received subscriptions for 21,431,661 shares of
its common stock, par value $0.001 per share, with the aggregate offering price of such shares being $1,500,216. The
material terms and conditions applicable to the purchase and sale of the securities in the private placement are set forth
in the form of the Securities Purchase Agreement included as an exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009.

Subsequent to this private placement, the Company determined that it needed to enter into the farm-in agreement and
raise additional funds in order to successfully drill a new test well on the Gabbs Valley Prospect. In July 2010, the
Company completed the private placement offering by issuing 2,500,002 additional shares of common stock, and
1,250,001 additional warrants to purchase shares of common stock at a price of $.50, which expired on December 31,
2011, as applicable, with an aggregate purchase price of $225,000. Proceeds from this private placement were utilized
for the Company's share of costs to drill a new well on the Gabbs Valley Prospect. Any remaining funds were used for
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general working capital purposes.

Proceeds of the July 2010 private placement were allocated $57,500 to common stock warrants and $167,500 to
common stock and paid in capital. The value of the warrants was estimated using the Black-Scholes Valuation Model
with the following weighted average assumptions: risk free interest rate of .30%, no dividend yield, volatility factor of
the expected market price of the Company's common stock of 155% to 157% (depending on the date of sale), and a
weighted average expected life of the warrants of one year. These warrants have expired.

In August 2011, the Company issued 2,000,000 shares of its common stock to Albert E. Whitehead, its Chief
Executive Officer, for a purchase price of $0.05 per share, which resulted in a total investment of $100,000.

As discussed further below in “Advances from Related Party” in this Item 7, on December 11, 2012, the Company
converted $300,012.50 in debt owed by the Company to the Whitehead Trust into shares of Common Stock at a
conversion rate of $0.05 per share, resulting in the issuance of 6,000,250 shares of Common Stock to the Whitehead
Trust.

SALE OF WORKING INTEREST

In October 2010, the Company sold 7% of its working interest in the Gabbs Valley Prospect leases for $700,000. In
connection with such sale, the purchasers were granted a working interest in the Paradise Unit 2-12 well and leases.

ADVANCES FROM RELATED PARTY

During 2011 and 2012, the Whitehead Trust advanced loans to the Company in the following transactions:

· on February 1, 2011, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $100,000 in exchange for the issuance of a
convertible note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent;

·on April 17, 2012, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $133,603 in exchange for the issuance of a convertible
note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent;

·on August 8, 2012, the Whitehead Trust advanced an additional loan to the Company in the amount of $32,397.50,
and such loan accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent; and

·on August 28, 2012, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $25,000 in exchange for the issuance of a promissory
note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent.
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On December 11, 2012, the Company converted the $302,167 in debt owed by the Company with respect to such
loans into shares of Common Stock at a conversion rate of $0.05 per share, resulting in the issuance of 6,000,250
shares of Common Stock to the Whitehead Trust. Upon the issuance of such shares, such debt owed by the Company
to the Whitehead Trust was deemed paid in full and the notes issued by the Company and the other obligations
relating to such debt were terminated. Albert E. Whitehead, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
Chairman of its Board of Directors, is the trustee of the Whitehead Trust.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Because estimates and assumptions require significant
judgment, future actual results could differ from those estimates and could have a significant impact on the Company's
results of operations, financial position and cash flows. The Company re-evaluates its estimates and assumptions at
least on a quarterly basis. The following policies may involve a higher degree of estimation and assumption:

Successful Efforts Accounting - Under the successful efforts method of accounting, the Company capitalizes all costs
related to property acquisitions and successful exploratory wells, all development costs and the costs of support
equipment and facilities. Certain costs of exploratory wells are capitalized pending determination that proved reserves
have been found. Such determination is dependent upon the results of planned additional wells and the cost of
required capital expenditures to produce the reserves found.

All costs related to unsuccessful exploratory wells are expensed when such wells are determined to be non-productive
and other exploration costs, including geological and geophysical costs, are expensed as incurred. The application of
the successful efforts method of accounting requires management's judgment to determine the proper designation of
wells as either developmental or exploratory, which will ultimately determine the proper accounting treatment of the
costs incurred. The results from a drilling operation can take considerable time to analyze, and the determination that
commercial reserves have been discovered requires both judgment and application of industry experience. Wells may
be completed that are assumed to be productive and actually deliver oil and gas in quantities insufficient to be
economic, which may result in the abandonment of the wells at a later date. The evaluation of oil and gas leasehold
acquisition costs requires management's judgment to estimate the fair value of exploratory costs related to drilling
activity in a given area.
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Impairment of unproved oil and gas properties - Capitalized drilling costs are reviewed periodically for impairment.
Costs related to impaired prospects or unsuccessful exploratory drilling are charged to expense. Management's
assessment of the results of exploration activities, commodity price outlooks, planned future sales or expiration of all
or a portion of such leaseholds impact the amount and timing of impairment provisions. An impairment expense could
result if oil and gas prices decline in the future as it may not be economic to develop some of these unproved
properties.

Estimates of future dismantlement, restoration, and abandonment costs - the Company accounts for future
abandonment costs of wells and related facilities in accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. Under this method of accounting, the accrual for
future dismantlement and abandonment costs is based on estimates of these costs for each of the Company's properties
based upon the type of production structure, reservoir characteristics, depth of the reservoir, market demand for
equipment, currently available procedures and consultations with construction and engineering consultants. Because
these costs typically extend many years into the future, estimating these future costs is difficult and requires
management to make estimates and judgments that are subject to future revisions based upon numerous factors,
including changing technology and the political and regulatory environment and, estimates as to the proper discount
rate to use and timing of abandonment.

ITEM 7A.	QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Not applicable.

ITEM 8. 	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The financial statements of the Company are set forth on pages 25 through 35 at the end of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. 	CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. 	CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
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Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision of the
Company's Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
the Company's disclosure

controls and procedures pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(e) and 15d - 15(e). Based on this
evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) has concluded that the disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report are effective.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company's Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Company's internal controls were designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the reliability of the Company's financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

Due to inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of control effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

The Company's Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) made an assessment of the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012. In making this assessment, the
Company's Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) used the criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). Based on this assessment, the Company's Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) concluded
that as of December 31, 2012, the Company's internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those
criteria.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company's independent registered public accounting
firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by the
Company's independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the SEC, which only require
management's report in this annual report.

Changes on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
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There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the
Company’s evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures which occurred during the Company’s last fiscal quarter
(the fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected or that is reasonably likely to
materially affect the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. 	OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. 	DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The following lists the directors and executive officers of the Company:

Name AgePosition
Albert E. Whitehead 82 Director, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
John C. Kinard 79 Director
Montague H. Hackett, Jr. 80 Director
Kevin R. Seth 53 Director
__________________________________

Directors hold office until their successors are elected by the shareholders of the Company and qualified. Executive
officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Albert E. Whitehead.

Mr. Whitehead has been a member of the Company's Board of Directors since 1991 and served as Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer from March 1998 to May 2001, when John P. McGrain assumed such role. Mr.
Whitehead again assumed the role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer on April 16, 2002 upon the resignation of
Mr. McGrain. Until February 5, 2008 Mr. Whitehead also served as the Non-Executive Chairman of Coastal Energy
Company (formerly PetroWorld Corp.), a company that is traded on the London Stock Exchange's Alternative
Investment Market and the Toronto Stock Exchange in Canada. Mr. Whitehead served as the Chairman and Chief
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Executive Officer of Seven Seas Petroleum Inc., a publicly held company, engaged in international oil and gas
exploration from February 1995 to May 1997. From April 1987 through January 1995, Mr. Whitehead served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Garnet Resources Corporation, a publicly held oil and gas exploration and
development company. Mr. Whitehead’s experience in the oil and gas industry, along with his familiarity with the
day-to-day operations of the Company, make him well suited to serve on the Company’s Board of Directors.

John C. Kinard.

Mr. Kinard has served as a Director of the Company since June 1998 and is currently a Partner in Silver Run
Investments, LLC, an oil and gas investment firm. Mr. Kinard serves as a Managing Partner of Remuda Resources
LLC, a private oil and gas exploration company. From 1990 through December 1995, Mr. Kinard served as President
of Glen Petroleum, Inc., a private oil and gas exploration company. From 1990 through 2002, Mr. Kinard also served
as the Chairman of Envirosolutions UK Ltd., a private industrial wastewater treatment company. Mr. Kinard’s
longstanding relationship with the Company and his knowledge of the oil and gas industry make him well equipped to
serve on the Company’s Board of Directors.

Montague H. Hackett, Jr.

Montague H. Hackett, Jr., a graduate of Princeton University and Harvard Law School, joined the Empire Board as a
director in June 2006. Over the years, Mr. Hackett has been associated with various natural resource companies both
as a director and as an officer. In the past five years, he has been Co-Chairman and a director of Victory Ventures
LLC, a New York venture capital company and International Energy Services, Inc., a Houston based oilfield service
company, with operations in Russia and Kazakstan. Given Mr. Hackett’s knowledge of the oil and gas industry and his
general business knowledge, Mr. Hackett is a good fit as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Kevin R. Seth.

Mr. Seth has served as a Director of the Company since February 23, 2011 and is a partner of Edgewood Management
LLC, a registered investment advisor, based in New York City. Prior to joining Edgewood in 1995, Mr. Seth worked
with Credit Suisse First Boston in London, New York and Boston. Mr. Seth graduated from Montana State University
with a B.S. Degree in Pre-Law and Economics and has served for the past ten (10) years as either Vice-Chairman or
Chairman of the University Investment Committee at Montana State University. Mr. Seth’s broad business experience
will allow him to provide considerable insight into the business decisions the Company will face and results in him
being well suited to serve as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors.

IDENTIFICATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE; AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

Edgar Filing: ACCESS INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form POS AM

47



As of December 31, 2012, the Company had not established any committees (including an audit committee) because
of the small size of its Board of Directors. As such, the Company does not have an audit committee or an audit
committee financial expert serving on such committee. As of December 31, 2012, the entire Board of Directors
(Messrs. Whitehead, Kinard, Hackett and Seth)

essentially serve as the Company's audit committee.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all of the Company's directors and employees, including
the Company's principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer or persons
performing similar functions. The Company undertakes to provide any person without charge, upon request, a copy of
the Code of Ethics. Requests may be directed to Empire Petroleum Corporation, 6506 S. Lewis Ave., Suite 112, Tulsa,
Oklahoma 74136-1020, or by calling (918) 488-8068.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires the Company's directors, executive
officers, and persons who beneficially own more than 10 percent of a registered class of the Company's equity
securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of Common Stock and
other equity securities of the Company.

Officers, directors and greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish the Company
with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to the Company and any written representations that in
other reports were required during the year ended December 31, 2012, to the Company's knowledge, all Section 16(a)
filing requirements applicable to its officers, directors and greater than 10% beneficial owners during the year ended
December 31, 2012 were complied with on a timely basis.

ITEM 11.	EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The Board of Directors does not have a Compensation Committee.

Edgar Filing: ACCESS INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form POS AM

48



EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

During the last two completed fiscal years, no executive officer received a salary or any other benefits as a part of
executive compensation. The Company's only named executive officer, Albert E. Whitehead, does not hold any stock
options and has not received any other award under an equity incentive plan.

DIRECTORS COMPENSATION

In return for serving as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Seth was granted in 2011 options to
purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s stock under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, at a strike price of $0.10 per
share, which was the closing price on the date of the grant. At the end of fiscal year 2012, all of such options remained
outstanding.

Except for Mr. Seth, no Director received compensation or any other benefits from the registrant during the last
completed fiscal year.

ITEM 12.	SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had two equity incentive plans under which equity securities were authorized
for issuance to the Company's directors, officers, employees and other persons who performed substantial services for
or on behalf of the Company. The "1995 Stock Option Plan", which expired in May 2005, remains only to the extent
necessary to govern outstanding options issued under the Plan. At the Company's 2006 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, the stockholders approved the "2006 Stock Incentive Plan", which authorizes granting up to 5,000,000
options for up to 5,000,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock.

The following table provides certain information relating to the 1995 Stock Option Plan and the 2006 Stock Incentive
Plan as of December 31, 2012:
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(a) (b) (c)
Number of securities
remaining available
for future

Number of securities issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options outstanding options securities reflected

Plan Category and rights and rights in column (a)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders 1,245,000 $0.142 3,955,000

Equity compensation plans
not approved by security
holders N/A N/A N/A

TOTAL 1,245,000 3,955,000

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock as of March 8,
2013 for:

* each person who is known to own beneficially more than 5% of our outstanding Common Stock;

* each of our executive officers and directors; and

* all executive officers and directors as a group.

The percentage of beneficial ownership for the following table is based on 91,564,485 shares of Common Stock
outstanding as of March 8, 2013.

Unless otherwise indicated below, to the Company's knowledge, all persons and entities listed below have sole voting
and investment power over their shares of Common Stock.
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Amount and nature of
Name and address of beneficial owner beneficial ownership Percent of class (1)

Albert E. Whitehead 27,113,911 shares (2) 29.61%
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
3214 E. 73rd Street
Tulsa, OK  74136-5927

John C. Kinard 781,331 shares (3) 0.85%
Director
52 S. Roslyn Street
Denver, CO  80230

Montague H. Hackett, Jr. 14,814,416 shares (4) 16.11%
Director
550 Park Avenue
New York, NY  10065

Kevin R. Seth 761,111 shares (5) 0.83%
Director
c/o Edgewood Management LLC
350 Park Avenue
New York, NY  10022

George H. Plewes 5,160,238(6) 5.64%
P. O. Box HM 1431
Hamilton HMFX
Bermuda

All current directors and executive officers
as a group (4 persons) 43,470,769 shares (7) 46.95%

(1) The percentage ownership for each person is calculated in accordance with the rules of the SEC, which provide
that any shares a person is deemed to beneficially own by virtue of having a right to acquire shares upon the
conversion of options or other rights are considered outstanding solely for purposes of calculating such person's
percentage ownership.

(2) This number includes: (i) 24,268,628 shares directly owned by the Albert E. Whitehead Living Trust, of which Mr.
Whitehead is the trustee; (ii) 30,000 shares owned by Mr. Whitehead's grandchildren for which he acts as custodian;
and (iii) 2,815,283 shares directly owned by the Lacy E. Whitehead Living Trust, of which Ms. Whitehead, Mr.
Whitehead's wife, is trustee. Mr. Whitehead disclaims any interest in the shares owned by the Lacy E. Whitehead
Living Trust and the shares owned by his grandchildren.
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(3) This number includes: (i) 161,331 shares directly owned by Mr. Kinard; (ii) 220,000 shares Mr. Kinard has the
right to acquire pursuant to options granted to him under the 1995 Stock Option Plan; (iii) 250,000 shares Mr. Kinard
has the right to acquire pursuant to options granted to him under the Company's 2006 Stock Incentive Plan; and (iv)
150,000 shares directly owned by Mr. Kinard's wife, of which Mr. Kinard disclaims any interest.

(4) This number includes (i) 9,600,288 shares directly owned by Mr. Hackett (ii) 400,000 shares Mr. Hackett has the
right to acquire under the Company's 2006 Stock Incentive Plan; (iii) 2,206,350 shares directly owned by the Trust
F/B/O Melinda Hackett of which Mr. Hackett disclaims any interest; (iv) 2,000,635 shares directly owned by the Trust
F/B/O Montague H. Hackett, III of which Mr. Hackett disclaims any interest; and (v) 607,143 shares directly owned
by Mayme M. Hackett, Mr. Hackett's wife, of which Mr. Hackett disclaims any interest.

(5) This number includes (i) 253,968 shares directly owned by Mr. Seth; (ii) 150,000 shares Mr. Seth has the right to
acquire under the Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan; and (iii) 357,143 shares held by Edgewood Management
LLC Retirement plan F/B/O Kevin R. Seth.

(6) This number included 5,160,238 shares directly owned by Mr. Plewes.

(7) This number is based on the numbers listed in footnotes 2 through 5 above.

ITEM 13.	CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In August 2011, the Company issued 2,000,000 shares of its common stock to Albert E. Whitehead, its Chief
Executive Officer for a purchase price of $0.05 per share, which resulted in a total investment of $100,000. For more
information regarding such purchase see “Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities” under Item 5 of this Form 10-K.

In October 2010, Messrs. Whitehead and Hackett participated in the sale of working interests by the Company on the
same terms and conditions as the other purchasers of the working interest. For more information regarding such
transaction, see "Sale of Working Interest" under Item 7 of this From 10-K.

During 2011 and 2012, the Whitehead Trust advanced loans to the Company in the following transactions:
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· on February 1, 2011, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $100,000 in exchange for the issuance of a
convertible note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent;

·on April 17, 2012, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $133,603 in exchange for the issuance of a convertible
note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent;

·on August 8, 2012, the Whitehead Trust advanced an additional loan to the Company in the amount of $32,397.50,
and such loan accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent; and

·on August 28, 2012, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $25,000 in exchange for the issuance of a promissory
note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent.
No payments of principal or interest were made with respect to such loans during 2011 or 2012. As of December 11,
2012, the total outstanding indebtedness owed by the Company to the Whitehead Trust with respect to such loans was
$300,012.50, and such amount was the largest aggregate amount of such indebtedness outstanding at any time. Albert
E. Whitehead, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Chairman of its Board of Directors, is the trustee of
the Whitehead Trust.

On December 11, 2012, the Company entered in a note conversion agreement with the Whitehead Trust. Pursuant to
the note conversion agreement, on December 11, 2012, the Company converted the $300,012.50 in debt owed by the
Company to the Whitehead Trust into shares of Common Stock at a conversion rate of $0.05 per share, resulting in the
issuance of 6,000,250 shares of Common Stock to the Whitehead Trust. Upon the issuance of such shares, such debt
owed by the Company to the Whitehead Trust was deemed paid in full and the notes issued by the Company and the
other obligations relating to such debt were terminated. Because of Mr. Whitehead’s interest in the transaction, Mr.
Whitehead did not participate in the Board of Directors’ deliberations on, or approval of, the note conversion
agreement or the conversion transaction.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The Company has determined that Mr. Kinard, Mr. Hackett and Mr. Seth are "independent" within the meaning of
Rule 5605(a)(2) of the NASDAQ listing standards. Because of the small size of the Company's Board of Directors, the
Company has not established any committees. Rather, the entire Board acts as, and performs the same functions as,
the audit committee, compensation committee and nominating committee. Mr. Whitehead is not considered
"independent" within the meaning of Rule 5605(a)(2) of the NASDAQ listing standards.

ITEM 14. 	PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The following is a summary of the fees billed or to be billed to the Company by HoganTaylor LLP, the Company's
independent registered public accounting firm, for professional services rendered for the fiscal years ended December
31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
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Fee Category Fiscal 2012 Fees Fiscal 2011 Fees

Audit Fees (1) $35,000 $36,250
Audit - Related Fees (2) 0 0
Tax Fees 0 0
All Other Fees (3) 0 0

Total Fees $35,000 $36,250

(1) Audit Fees consist of aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's annual
financial statements and review of the interim financial statements included in quarterly reports or services that are
normally provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in connection with statutory and regulatory
filings or engagements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

(2) Audit-Related fees consist of aggregate fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to
the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not reported under "Audit Fees."

(3) All Other Fees consist of aggregate fees billed for products and services provided by HoganTaylor LLP, other than
those disclosed above.

The entire Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the
work of the independent registered public accounting firm and approves in advance any services to be performed by
the independent registered public accounting firm, whether audit-related or not. The entire Board of Directors reviews
each proposed engagement to determine whether the provision of services is compatible with maintaining the
independence of the independent registered public accounting firm. All of the fees shown above were pre-approved by
the entire Board of Directors.

PART IV.

ITEM 15. 	EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a) 	(1) 	Financial Statements

The financial statements under this item are included in Item 8 of Part II.
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	(2) 	Schedules

NONE

	(3) 	Exhibits

Exhibit Description

NO.

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Company's Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 1995, which was filed November 6, 1995).

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Form 8-K dated May 31, 2012, which was filed on June 1, 2012).

3.3 Bylaws of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Form 10-QSB for the
period ended March 31, 1998, which was filed May 15, 1998).

10.1 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Appendix A of the Company's Form DEFS 14A
dated June 13, 1995, which was filed June 14, 1995).

10.2 Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(g) of the Company's Form
10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1995, which was filed March 29, 1996).

10.3
Letter Agreement dated May 8, 2003 between the Company and O. F. Duffield (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2003, which was
filed March 30, 2004).

10.4 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to the Company's 2006 Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A dated May 10, 2006).

10.5 Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9, 2006).

10.6 Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement for Non-employee Directors (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9, 2006).

10.7 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's
Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9, 2006).

10.8

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement entered into between Empire Petroleum Corporation and certain
accredited investors in connection with the 2009 private placement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009, which was filed on November 16,
2009).
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10.9

Form of securities purchase agreement entered into between Empire Petroleum Corporation and certain
accredited        Investors in connection with the June-July 2010 private placement (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010, which was filed on
August 13, 2010).

10.10

Form of common share warrant certificate issued by Empire Petroleum Corporation in favor of certain
accredited        investors in connection with the June-July 2010 private placement (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010, which was filed on
August 13, 2010).

10.11Convertible Note Due February 1, 2012 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company'sForm 8-K dated February 1, 2011, which was filed on February 7, 2011).

10.12
Letter Agreement dated November 17, 2010 between the Company and Cortez Exploration, LLC (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 1) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2010, which was filed on September 30, 2011).

10.13
Designation of Agent (Agency Agreement), dated April 27, 2005, between the Company and Cortez
Exploration, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A
(Amendment No. 2) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which was filed on December 14, 2011).

10.14
Participation Agreement dated May 8, 2006 between the Company and Cortez Exploration, LLC (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011,
which was filed on March 21, 2012).

10.15
Option to Purchase Okie Draw and South Okie Prospects, Natrona County, Wyoming, dated August 4, 2009,
between the Company and Viking Exploration, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, which was filed on March 21, 2012).

10.16

Amendment, dated February 4, 2010, of Option to Purchase Okie Draw and South Okie Prospects, Natrona
County, Wyoming, dated August 4, 2009, between the Company and Viking Exploration, LLC (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 2) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2010, which was filed on December 14, 2011).

10.17
Designation of Agent (Agency Agreement), dated June 10, 2010, between the Company and Cortez Exploration,
LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 2) for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which was filed on December 14, 2011).

10.18
Prospect Letter Agreement dated October 4, 2010 between the Company and seven (7) investors to purchase a
1% interest in the Company’s Gabbs Valley Prospect (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, which was filed on March 21, 2012).

10.19Convertible Note due April 11, 2013 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012, which was filed on May 11, 2012).

10.20Promissory Note dated August 28, 2012 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sForm 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012, which was filed on November 5, 2012).

10.21
Note Conversion Agreement, dated December 11, 2012, between the Company and the Albert E. Whitehead
Living Trust (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated December 11,
2012, which was filed on December 11, 2012).
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31  
Certification of Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) pursuant to Rules 13a - 14 (a) and 15(d)
- 14(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(1) (31) of Regulation
S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

101 Financial Statements for XBRL format (submitted herewith).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Empire Petroleum Corporation

Date:March 8, 2013 By:/s/Albert E. Whitehead
Albert E. Whitehead
Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer, principal financial officer
and principal accounting officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Albert E. Whitehead Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 8, 2013
Albert E. Whitehead

/s/ John C. Kinard Director March 8, 2013
John C. Kinard

/s/ Montague H. Hackett, Jr. Director March 8, 2013
Montague H. Hackett, Jr.

/s/ Kevin R. Seth Director March 8, 2013
Kevin R. Seth
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EXHIBIT INDEX

NO.

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Company's Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 1995, which was filed November 6, 1995).

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Form 8-K dated May 31, 2012, which was filed on June 1, 2012).

3.3 Bylaws of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Form 10-QSB for the
period ended March 31, 1998, which was filed May 15, 1998).

10.1 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Appendix A of the Company's Form DEFS 14A
dated June 13, 1995, which was filed June 14, 1995).

10.2 Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(g) of the Company's Form
10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1995, which was filed March 29, 1996).

10.3
Letter Agreement dated May 8, 2003 between the Company and O. F. Duffield (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2003, which was
filed March 30, 2004).

10.4 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to the Company's 2006 Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A dated May 10, 2006).

10.5 Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9, 2006).

10.6 Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement for Non-employee Directors (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9, 2006).

10.7 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's
Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006, which was filed on June 9, 2006).

10.8

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement entered into between Empire Petroleum Corporation and certain
accredited investors in connection with the 2009 private placement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009, which was filed on November 16,
2009).

10.9 Form of securities purchase agreement entered into between Empire Petroleum Corporation and certain
accredited        Investors in connection with the June-July 2010 private placement (incorporated herein by
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reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010, which was filed on
August 13, 2010).

10.10

Form of common share warrant certificate issued by Empire Petroleum Corporation in favor of certain
accredited        investors in connection with the June-July 2010 private placement (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010, which was filed on
August 13, 2010).

10.11Convertible Note Due February 1, 2012 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company'sForm 8-K dated February 1, 2011, which was filed on February 7, 2011).

10.12
Letter Agreement dated November 17, 2010 between the Company and Cortez Exploration, LLC (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 1) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2010, which was filed on September 30, 2011).

10.13
Designation of Agent (Agency Agreement), dated April 27, 2005, between the Company and Cortez
Exploration, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A
(Amendment No. 2) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which was filed on December 14, 2011).

10.14
Participation Agreement dated May 8, 2006 between the Company and Cortez Exploration, LLC (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011,
which was filed on March 21, 2012).

10.15
Option to Purchase Okie Draw and South Okie Prospects, Natrona County, Wyoming, dated August 4, 2009,
between the Company and Viking Exploration, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, which was filed on March 21, 2012).

10.16

Amendment, dated February 4, 2010, of Option to Purchase Okie Draw and South Okie Prospects, Natrona
County, Wyoming, dated August 4, 2009, between the Company and Viking Exploration, LLC (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 2) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2010, which was filed on December 14, 2011).

10.17
Designation of Agent (Agency Agreement), dated June 10, 2010, between the Company and Cortez Exploration,
LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 2) for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which was filed on December 14, 2011).

10.18
Prospect Letter Agreement dated October 4, 2010 between the Company and seven (7) investors to purchase a
1% interest in the Company’s Gabbs Valley Prospect (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, which was filed on March 21, 2012).

10.19Convertible Note due April 11, 2013 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012, which was filed on May 11, 2012).

10.20Promissory Note dated August 28, 2012 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sForm 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012, which was filed on November 5, 2012).

10.21
Note Conversion Agreement, dated December 11, 2012, between the Company and the Albert E. Whitehead
Living Trust (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated December 11,
2012, which was filed on December 11, 2012).

31  
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Certification of Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) pursuant to Rules 13a - 14 (a) and 15(d)
- 14(a) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(1) (31) of Regulation
S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (and principal financial officer) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (submitted herewith).

101 Financial Statements for XBRL format (submitted herewith).
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT

REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders of Empire Petroleum Corporation

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Empire Petroleum Corporation as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
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whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Empire Petroleum Corporation as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern.
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has incurred significant losses since inception. The
ultimate recoverability of the Company's investment in its oil and gas interests is dependent upon the existence and
discovery and development of economically recoverable oil and gas reserves and the ability of the Company to obtain
necessary financing to carry out its exploration and development program. This condition raises substantial doubt
about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans concerning this matter are also
described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty.

	/s/	HOGANTAYLOR LLP

	Tulsa, Oklahoma

	March 8, 2013
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EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
ASSETS
Current assets:
     Cash and cash equivalents $20,766 $                    4,978
     Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $3,750) 1,370 7,195
     Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,100 1,100
Total current assets 23,236 13,273
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Property & equipment less accumulated depreciation and depletion 223,465 255,215
Other assest 77,696 58,442
Total assets $324,397 $               326,930

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $10,135 $                 11,487
     Notes payable – related party 0 100,000
Total current liabilities 10,135 111,487

Stockholders’ equity:
     Common stock  - $.001 par value 150,000,000 shares authorized, 91,564 85,564
     91,564,485 and 85,564,235 shares issued and outstanding
     respectively
     Additional paid in capital 14,482,599 14,136,432
     Accumulated deficit (14,259,901) (14,006,553)
Total stockholders’ equity 314,262 215,443
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $324,397 $                326,930
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See accompanying notes to financial statements

EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Revenue:
     Petroleum Sales $                                                  0$                                                  0

Costs and expenses:
     Lease abandonment expense 31,750 0
     Production & operating 14,746 22,060
     General & administrative 198,936 222,133

245,432 244,193
Operating loss (245,432) (244,193)

Other income and (expense):
     Interest income 1 11
     Interest expense (7,917) (3,250)
 Total other income and (expense) (7,916) (3,239)

Net income (loss) $(253,348) $                                     (247,432)

Net income (loss) per common
   share, basic and diluted $0.00 $                                             0.00
Weighted average number of
   common shares outstanding
   basic and diluted 85,893,016 84,163,193
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See accompanying notes to financial statements

EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Additional
Paid in Accumulated

Shares Par Value Capital Deficit Total
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Balances December 31, 2010 83,069,235 83,069 13,904,142 (13,759,121) 228,090

Net loss (247,432) (247,432)

Value of services contributed by employee 0 0 50,000 0 50,000

Issuance of Stock Options 0 0 11,295 0 11,295

Issuance of Common Stock 2,495,000 2,495 170,995 173,490

Balances December 31, 2011 85,564,235 85,564 14,136,432 (14,006,553) 215,443

Net loss (253,348) (253,348)

Value of services contributed by employee 0 0 50,000 0 50,000

Issuance of Stock Options 0 0 0 0 0

Issuance of Common Stock 6,000,250 6,000 296,167 0 302,167

Balances December 31, 2012 91,564,485 91,564 14,482,599 (14,259,901) 314,262

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
   Net loss $(253,348)$        (247,432)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
   cash used in operating activities:
   Value of services contributed by employee 50,000              50,000
   Stock option plan expense 0              11,295
   Interest expense converted to common stock 7,917 0
   Lease abandonment 31,750 0
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
   Accounts receivable and other assets (13,429) (19,722)
   Prepaid expenses 0                6,236
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 798           (64,088)
Net cash used in operating activities (175,212) (263,711)

Cash flow from investing activities:
   Sale of working interest 0 0
   Acquisition of lease acres 0 0
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 0 0
Cash flows from financing activities:
   Proceeds from private equity placement 0            100,000
   Proceeds from related party, note payable 191,000            100,000
Net cash provided by Financing Activities 191,000            200,000

Net increase (decrease) in cash 15,788             (63,711)

Cash - Beginning of period 4,978              68,689

Cash - End of period $20,766 $                4,978
Supplemental Disclosure of Non Cash Items:
   Common Stock issued for notes payable & accrued interest $302,167 $             73,490
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See accompanying notes to financial statements

EMPIRE PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2012 and 2011

General:

On July 20, 2001, Americomm Resources Corporation merged with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Empire Petroleum
Corporation, and simultaneously changed the name of the corporation to Empire Petroleum Corporation (the
"Company"). Both the merger and name change were effective as of August 15, 2001. Americomm Resources
Corporation was originally incorporated in the State of Utah on the 22nd day of August 1983, as Chambers Energy
Corporation. On the 7th day of March 1985, the state of incorporation was changed to Delaware by means of a merger
with Americomm Corporation, a Delaware corporation formed for the purpose of effecting the said change. In July
1995, the Company changed its name to Americomm Resources Corporation.

1. Continuing operations:

The ultimate recoverability of the Company's investment in its oil and gas interests is dependent upon the existence
and discovery of economically recoverable oil and gas reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary
financing to further develop the interests, and upon the ability to attain future profitable production. The Company has
been incurring significant losses in recent years.

Virtually all of the Company's assets are invested in the Gabbs Valley and South Okie Prospects, both of which are
unproven, that is, they have not been evaluated as being capable of producing economical quantities of reserves. The
Company acquired additional leasehold interests in and drilled a test well on its Gabbs Valley Prospect in 2006.
Completion of the test well was suspended pending evaluation of the geologic information and the securing of
additional capital to continue the evaluation and possibly to complete the well. The Company drilled a test well on the
Prospect in 2010 which recovered oil, however the oil contained paraffin which prevented it from producing at
economic rates. The Company continues to believe that the Prospect contains economical reserve quantities and is
actively conducting additional studies and will be pursuing potential funding and/or partners to continue evaluation

Edgar Filing: ACCESS INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form POS AM

73



and exploration.

The Company plans to supplement current studies of the South Okie Prospect with a seismograph evaluation to verify
the potential of the prospect. The Company has acquired 11 miles of seismic and studies of this data were completed
in early January 2010 and an additional geological study was also completed in early January 2010.

The continuation of the Company is dependent upon the ability of the Company to attain future profitable operations.
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of United States generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to a company with continuing operations, which assume that the Company will continue in operation for
the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its obligations in the normal course of
operations. Management believes the going concern assumption to be appropriate for these financial statements. If the
going concern assumption were not appropriate for these financial statements, then adjustments might be necessary to
the carrying value of assets and liabilities, reported expenses and the balance sheet classifications used.

2. Significant accounting policies:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(a) Capital assets:

The Company uses the successful efforts method of accounting for its oil and gas activities. Costs incurred are
deferred until exploration and completion results are evaluated. At such time, costs of activities with economically
recoverable reserves are capitalized as proven properties, and costs of unsuccessful or uneconomical activities are
expensed.

Capitalized drilling costs are reviewed periodically for impairment. Costs related to impaired prospects or
unsuccessful exploratory drilling are charged to expense. Management's assessment of the results of exploration
activities, commodity price outlooks, planned future sales or expiration of all or a portion of such leaseholds impact
the amount and timing of impairment provisions. An impairment expense could result if oil and gas prices decline in
the future as it may not be economical to develop some of these unproved properties.

(b) Per share amounts:

Edgar Filing: ACCESS INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form POS AM

74



The Company calculates and discloses basic earnings per share ("Basic EPS") and diluted earnings per share ("Diluted
EPS"). The computation of basic earnings per share is computed by dividing earnings available to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of outstanding common shares during the period.

Diluted EPS gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period. The computation of
diluted EPS does not assume conversion, exercise or contingent exercise of securities that would have an anti-dilutive
effect on losses. As a result, if there is a loss from continuing operations, Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner
as Basic EPS is computed. At December 31, 2012 and 2011 the Company had 1,245,000 options outstanding that
were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share. Such financial instruments may become dilutive and
would then need to be included in future calculations of Diluted EPS.

(c) Income taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the asset and liability method of accounting for income
taxes. Under the asset and liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to the taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is established if management
determines it is more likely than not that some portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

(d) Financial instruments:

The carrying value of current assets and current liabilities approximate their fair value due to the relatively short
period to maturity of the instruments.

(e) Stock option plan:

The Company expenses options granted over the vesting period based on the grant date fair value of the award.

(f) Obligations associated with the retirement of assets:
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The Company follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance on accounting for asset retirement
obligations, which among other matters, addresses financial accounting and reporting for legal obligations associated
with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. This guidance requires that
the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred, with
the associated asset retirement cost capitalized as part of the related asset and allocated to expense over the asset's
useful life. The Company applies its analysis to producing wells.

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

FASB periodically issues new accounting standards in a continuing effort to improve standards of financial
accounting and reporting. The Company has reviewed the recently issued pronouncements and concluded that the
following new accounting standards are applicable:

In July 2012, the FASB issued guidance to amend and simplify the rules related to testing indefinite-lived intangible
assets for impairment. The revised guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether
the existence of events and circumstances indicates that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible
asset is impaired. If, after assessing the totality of events and circumstances, an entity concludes that it is not more
likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired, then the entity is not required to take further
action. However, if an entity concludes otherwise, then it is required to determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived
intangible asset and perform the quantitative impairment test by comparing the fair value with the carrying amount in
accordance with current guidance. These amendments are effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed
for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidance will not have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

3. Property and equipment:

In 2003, the Company acquired a 10% interest in the Gabbs Valley Prospect of Western Nevada by issuing 2,000,000
shares of Company stock. The Company has recorded its investment at $200,000. In 2005, the Company conducted a
seismic survey of the Gabbs Valley Prospect. Based on the results of the seismic survey, during 2006, the Company
entered into an agreement to increase its working interest in the prospect to 40% by paying $675,000 plus 55% of the
drilling costs through completion. The Company contracted a drilling rig, which commenced drilling the Empire
Cobble Cuesta 1-12-12N-34E, Nye County, Nevada in September 2006. After reaching a depth of 5,195 feet the
Company ceased drilling operations, ran electronic logs, installed a wellhead, and

conditioned the hole so that it might be re-entered or deepened at a later date. In April 2007, the Company re-entered
the well and based on the results of drill stem tests, determined that the formation was very sensitive to the mud and
water used in drilling the test well, causing clogs in the formation to swell which prevented any oil which might be
present to flow into the well bore. The total gross acres of this prospect was increased to 92,826 acres by the
acquisition of 30,917 acres from the U.S. Department of Interior in June 2006, at a cost of $36,689, the acquisition of
9,943.91 acres in September 2008, at a cost of $13,025 and the acquisition of 7,680 acres in September 2009, at a cost
of $12,615. The Company increased its interest to 57% in the prospect leases in 2007 when one of the joint
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participants elected to surrender its 30% interest. The Company and the remaining joint owners assumed liabilities of
approximately $68,000 to acquire the interest.

In 2010, the Company drilled a test well in the Paradise Unit of the Gabbs Valley Prospect to a depth of 4,250 feet.
The well produced small amounts of oil containing paraffin which may have restricted oil flow. A co-owner of the
lease elected to take over the lease and well, including remediation of the site and as of December 31, 2010, the
Company had expensed $2,255,493 of intangible drilling costs related to the Paradise Unit test well. Also in 2010, the
Company sold a 7% working interest in the Gabbs Valley Prospect for $700,000. In December 2011, the Company
acquired leases on 3,840 acres of undeveloped land in Nye County, Nevada, which are a part of the Gabbs Valley
Prospect. As of December 31, 2012, the Gabbs Valley Prospect consisted of approximately 34,186 gross acres of
federal leases located in Nye County, Nevada, of which the Company owns a 50% working interest in 30,346 gross
acres and an 88.5% in 3,840 gross acres.

The Company's other property and equipment, totaling $2,561 at December 31, 2012, consists entirely of office
furniture, fixtures and equipment, which are fully depreciated.

4. Capital Stock:

In 2005, the Company raised $500,000 of net proceeds by selling 5,000,000 shares of newly issued common stock
along with warrants to purchase 1,250,000 shares of common stock which, subject to certain restrictions, could have
been exercised for a period of one year at an exercise price of $0.25. Proceeds of the original placement were allocated
$67,875 to common stock warrants and

$432,125 to common stock and paid in capital. In 2006, the warrants were extended twice; the extensions reduced the
value of the warrants to $18,250. The value assigned to the warrants was determined using the Black-Scholes option
valuation method with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected volatility of 154%, risk free interest
rate of 3.28% and expected life of one year. Assumptions used for the extensions were: no dividend yield, expected
volatility of 153%, risk free interest rate of 4.86% and expected life of 6 months. The warrants expired on November
15, 2010 with none being exercised.

In 2006, the Company raised $1,450,000 of net proceeds by selling 7,250,000 shares of newly issued stock along with
warrants to purchase 1,812,500 shares of common stock, which, subject to certain restrictions, could have been
exercised on or before March 15, 2009 subsequently extended to November 15, 2010 at an exercise price of $0.50.
Proceeds of the placement were allocated $144,675 to common stock warrants and $1,305,325 to common stock and
paid in capital. The value assigned to the warrants was determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation method
with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected volatility of 148% risk-free interest rate of 5.09% and an
expected life of one year. The warrants expired November 15, 2010 with none being exercised.
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In 2007, the Company raised $1,000,000 of net proceeds by selling 5,000,000 shares of newly issued stock, along with
warrants to purchase 1,250,000 shares of common stock, which subject to certain restrictions, could have been
exercised until March 15, 2009 (subsequently extended to November 15, 2010 at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.
Proceeds of the placement were allocated $80,000 to common stock warrants and $920,000 to common stock and paid
in capital. The value assigned to the warrants was determined by using the Black-Scholes option valuation methods
with the following assumptions: no dividend yield, expected volatility of 136%, risk free interest rate of 4.94%, and an
expected useful life of one year. The warrants expired November 15, 2010 with none being exercised.

In 2009, the Company raised $1,215,216 of net proceeds by selling 17,360,233 shares of newly issued common stock.
Proceeds were utilized for the Company's share of costs to drill a new well on the Gabbs Valley Prospect (See Note
1).

In 2010, the Company raised $685,000 of net proceeds by selling 8,515,874 shares of newly issued stock, along with
warrants to purchase 2,222,226 shares of Common Stock which, subject to certain restrictions, could have been
exercised until June 16, 2011 at an exercise price of $0.50 per share. Proceeds of the placements were allocated
$101,250 to Common Stock Warrants and $583,750 to Common Stock and paid in capital. The value assigned to the
warrants was determined by using the Black-Scholes option valuation methods with the following assumptions: no
dividend yield, expected volatility of 155%, risk free interest rate of .3% and an expected useful life of one year. The
warrants expired in 2011 with none being exercised.

In August 2011, the Company issued 2,000,000 shares of its common stock to Albert E. Whitehead, its Chief
Executive Officer, for a purchase price of $0.05 per share, which resulted in a total investment of $100,000.

On December 11, 2012, the Company entered in a note conversion agreement with the Albert E. Whitehead Living
Trust (the “Whitehead Trust”). Pursuant to the note conversion agreement, on December 11, 2012, the Company
converted $300,012.50 in debt owed by the Company to the Whitehead Trust into shares of Common Stock at a
conversion rate of $0.05 per share, resulting in the issuance of 6,000,250 shares of Common Stock to the Whitehead
Trust. Upon the issuance of such shares, such debt owed by the Company to the Whitehead Trust was deemed paid in
full and certain notes issued by the Company and the other obligations relating to such debt were terminated. Albert E.
Whitehead, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Chairman of its Board of Directors, is the trustee of the
Whitehead Trust.

5. Stock options:

Under a stock option plan adopted in 1995, the Company had the discretion to grant options for up to 1,600,000 shares
of common stock until May 15, 2005, at which time the plan terminated except to the extent necessary to govern
outstanding options. Stock options granted under the plan vest on grant date and expire ten years from the date of
grant plus 30 days. The exercise price of the options is the fair value on the date of grant.
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At the Company's 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the stockholders approved the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan
(the "Plan"). The Plan permits the issuance of stock options, restricted stock awards, and performance shares to
employees, officers, directors, and consultants of the Company. Initially, and until such time as the Board creates a
Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors will administer the Plan. The total number of shares of common
stock that may be issued pursuant to awards under the Plan is 5,000,000. Under the Plan, no participant may receive
awards of stock options that cover in the aggregate more than 500,000 shares of common stock in any fiscal year.
Unless terminated by the Board, or upon the granting of awards covering all of the shares subject to the Plan, the Plan
shall terminate on June 5, 2016.

The Company expenses the cost of options granted over the vesting period of the option based on the grant-date fair
value of the award. For the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recognized an expense of $0 and
$11,295, respectively, related to options granted under the Plan.

Fair values were estimated at the date of grants of the options, using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with
the following weighted average assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 3.65% and 2.77%, volatility factor of the
expected market price of the Company's common stock of 172% and 142%, no dividend yield on the Company's
common stock, and a weighted average expected

life of the options of 5 years. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair
value of traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. For purposes of determining the
expected life of the options, the Company utilizes the Simplified Method as defined in Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
107 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In addition options valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including stock price
volatility.

As of December 31, 2012, there was no unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested share-based
compensation arrangements under the Plan.

A summary of the Company's Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2012 and changes during the year is presented
below:

Weighted Average
Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at Beginning of Year 2011 1,095,000 $0.148
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Granted 150,000 $0.10

Cancelled or Exercised

Outstanding at End of Year 2011 1,245,000 $0.142

Granted

Cancelled or Exercised

Outstanding at End of Year 2012 1,245,000 $0.142

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2012:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Number Remaining Average Number Average
Exercise OutstandingContractualExercise ExercisableExercise
Prices at 12/31/12 Life Price at 12/31/12 Price

$0.10 - $0.26 1,245,000 4.86 Years $0.142 1,245,000 $0.142

6. Income taxes:

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount obtained by applying the Federal income tax rate of 34% to
income before income taxes. The difference relates to the following items:

2012 2011
Statutory tax rate 34% 34%

Expected tax benefit $ (86,000) $                            (85,000)
Benefit of losses not recognized 86,000  85,000

Tax provision (benefit) as reported $0 $                                       0

The components of deferred income taxes at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets:
Loss carry-forwards $2,400,000 $                          2,300,000
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Valuation allowance (2,400,000)  (2,300,000)
0 0

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment 0 0

Net deferred taxes $0 $0

At December 31, 2012, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $7,952,231 which expire
beginning in 2013.

Utilization of the Company's loss carryforwards is dependent on realizing taxable income. Deferred tax assets for
these carryforwards have been reduced by a valuation allowance up to an amount equal to estimated deferred tax
liability.

The Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2008. The Company
is not currently the subject of any income tax examinations by any tax authorities.

Based upon a review of its income tax filing positions, the Company believes that its positions would be sustained
upon an audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a material change to its financial position.
Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions have been recorded. The Company recognizes interest
related to income taxes as interest expense and penalties as operating expenses.

7. Oil Sale Revenue:

The Company currently records revenue from petroleum sales when received from the operator of the well. Petroleum
sales are reported net of working interest and overriding royalty amounts due. Prior to 2006, the Company was
responsible for distributing allocable portions of oil sale revenue to working interest and royalty owners for
production in the Cheyenne River Prospect. Accordingly, a liability for estimated royalty payments was recorded
when oil sale proceeds were received since a division order had not been completed, certain amounts were credited to
royalties payable until the division order issue was resolved.

8. Operating lease:

The Company leases office space under an operating lease agreement with an unrelated party which expires in March
31, 2014. Monthly lease payments are $1,100.
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Rent expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $13,200 and $13,200, respectively.

9. Related Party Transactions:

During 2011 and 2012, the Whitehead Trust advanced loans to the Company in the following transactions:

· on February 1, 2011, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $100,000 in exchange for the issuance of a
convertible note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent;

·on April 17, 2012, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $133,603 in exchange for the issuance of a convertible
note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent;

·on August 8, 2012, the Whitehead Trust advanced an additional loan to the Company in the amount of $32,397.50,
and such loan accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent; and

·on August 28, 2012, the Whitehead Trust loaned the Company $25,000 in exchange for the issuance of a promissory
note, which accrued interest at an annual rate of four percent.
On December 11, 2012, the Company converted $302,167 in debt and accrued interest owed by the Company with
respect to such loans into shares of Common Stock at a conversion rate of $0.05 per share, resulting in the issuance of
6,000,250 shares of Common Stock to the Whitehead Trust. Upon the issuance of such shares, such debt owed by the
Company to the Whitehead Trust was deemed paid in full and the notes issued by the Company and the other
obligations relating to such debt were terminated. Albert E. Whitehead, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and Chairman of its Board of Directors, is the trustee of the Whitehead Trust.
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